Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, July 24, 2025 Page 1

-

Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THURSDAY, JULY 24, 2025 - 5:00 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN-PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

Members of the public may participate remotely via Zoom at the following link https./zoom.us/join
with the following Webinar ID and Password:
Meeting ID: 991 5300 5433
Security Passcode: 007953

TELECONFERENCE LOCATION!:
Director Gabriel
1000 Greenley Road
Sonora, CA 95370

Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive,
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the
community.

Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs
with quality care in a safe and compassionate environment.

AGENDA
Presented By:
1. Call to Order / Roll Call (Pack)
2. Board Announcements (Pack)
3. Public Comment (Pack)

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to
exceed three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board,
which are not otherwise covered under an item on this agenda. This is the appropriate
place to comment on items on the Consent Agenda. Board Members may not deliberate
or take action on an item not on the duly posted agenda. Written comments for the
Board should be provided to the Board clerk or designee for the official record.
Whenever possible, written correspondence should be submitted to the Board in
advance of the meeting to provide adequate time for its consideration. Speaker cards
are available.

! Note: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(b), this meeting will include teleconference
participation by Director Gabriel from the address shown above. This notice and agenda will be posted at
the teleconference location.

Page 1



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, July 24, 2025 Page 2
4. Consent Agenda — General Business (Pack)

The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote on the
Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A Board Member
may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One motion shall be made to
adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda.

A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special and Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors — June 26, 2025.

B. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports
e Physician Services & Clinic Operations
e Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
e Laboratory and Radiology
¢ Foundation
¢ Marketing - (No report)
e PMO Project Summary

C. Consider and Approve Policies:

¢ Clinical Evaluation and Management of a Transfusion Reaction (Revised)
Infection Control Authority (New)
Infection Prevention & Control Program (Revised)
Influenza and Pneumococcal Vaccine Program (Revised)
Transmission-Based Precautions (Revised)

D. Consider and Approve Family Medicine Privileges.
Recommended Action: Approval of Consent Agenda Items (A) through (D).
» Board Questions

» Motion/Second
» Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

5. Receive Informational Reports
A. Chief Executive Officer (Verbal Report) (Casillas)
¢ One Big Beautiful Bill Act (OBBBA)
e Transaction Update (Miller)
¢ Independence Biker Rally Update (Casillas)

» Public Comment

B. Chief Nursing Officer (Descent)
e Dashboard — June 2025

» Public Comment

C. Chief Financial Officer (Robinson)
e Facilities Update
e Financial Statements — June 2025
e Finance Dashboard — June 2025
e Supplemental Payments — June 2025

» Public Comment

Page 2



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, July 24, 2025

6. Action Items

Page 3

A. Consider and Approve Response Letter to the 2024-2025 Grand Jury Report and Authorize

Transmittal. (Counsel)

Recommended Action: Approve the Response Letter to the 2024-2025 Grand Jury Report and

Authorize Transmittal.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVvVvvVvveyy

B. Consider and Approve Resolution No. 2025-04, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San
Benito Health Care District Regarding the Administration of the Oaths of Office. (Pack)

Recommended Action: Approve Resolution No. 2025-04, Resolution of the Board of Directors of the

San Benito Health Care District Regarding the Administration of the Oaths of Olffice.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVvVVvVVYY

C. Consider the Development of Board Policy Regarding Remote Attendance and Provide Direction to

Staff. (Pack)

Recommended Action: Approve the Development of Board Policy Regarding Remote Attendance.

Report

Board Questions

Public Comment
Motion/Second
Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

vVVvVVVYY

7. Public Comment

(Pack)

This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed session topics, not to exceed three (3)

minutes.

8. Closed Session

See the Attached Closed Session Sheet Information.

9. Closed Session Report

10. Adjournment

(Pack)

(Counsel)

(Pack)

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, August 28, 2025, at 5:00

p-m., Great Room.

Page 3



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, July 24, 2025 Page 4

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is available at
the Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the District, and posted on the District’s website at
https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/. All items appearing on the agenda are
subject to action by the Board. Staff and Committee recommendations are subject to change by the Board.

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in connection with any
agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District office. Public records distributed
during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be available for public inspection at the meeting. If the
public record is prepared by a third party and distributed at the meeting, it will be made available for
public inspection following the meeting at the District office.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular

business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District
to make reasonable accommodations.

Please note that room capacity is limited and available on a first-come, first-served basis.

Page 4



Page 1 of 2

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
July 24, 2025

AGENDA FOR CLOSED SESSION

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda
items as provided below. No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code.

O

CLOSED 1 ENDA ITEMS
LICENSE/PERMIT DETERMINATION

(Government Code §54956.7)
Applicant(s): (Specify number of applicants)

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
(Government Code §54956.8)

N W LE SEL- TING LIT
(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1))

Name of case:
Case name unspecified:

CON W LEGAL C - ATED LI
(Government Code §54956.9)

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3): Lidia Fernandez Claim received June 6,
2025.

TIABILITY CL
(Government Code §54956.95)

Claimant: (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961):
Agency claimed against: (Specify name):

THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
(Government Code §54957)

Consultation with: (Specify the name of law enforcement agency and title of officer):

PUBLIC EMPL NT
(Government Code §54957)

Title:

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
(Government Code §54957)

Title:

Page 5



Page 2 of 2

PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
(Government Code §54957)

(Specify position title of the employee being reviewed):
Title:

PUBLI JPLINE
(Government Code §54957)

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline,
dismissal, or release of a public employee. Discipline includes potential reduction of compensation.)

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
(Government Code §54957.6)

Agency designated representative:
Employee organization:
Unrepresented employee:

CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
(Government Code §54957.8)

(No additional information is required to consider case review or planning.)

REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET
(Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code § 32106)

Discussion will concern: (Specify whether discussion will concern proposed new service, program, or
facility):

1. Trade Secrets. Strategic Planning. Proposed New Programs. and Services.

Estimated date of public disclosure: (Specify month and year):

HEARING P S
(Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 32106)

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical
executive committee, or report of quality assurance committee):

1. Report — Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials

CHARGE INVOL ¥ TECTED
BY FEDERAL LLAW (Government Code §54956.86)

(No additional information is required to discuss a charge or complaint pursuant to Section 54956.86.)

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION

Page 6



-

SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"-.FLOOR, GREAT ROOM
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 26, 2025
5:00 P.M.
MINUTES

Directors Present
Bill Johnson, Board Member
Devon Pack, Board Member
Victoria Angelo, Board Member (arrived at 5:10 pm)
Nick Gabriel, Board Member - (Teleconference)
Josie Sanchez, Board Member

Also Present
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer
Karen Descent, Chief Nursing Officer
Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Ambulatory & Physician Services
Suzie Mays, Vice President, Information & Strategic Services
Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel

. Call to Order/Roll Call
Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM. A quorum was present, and attendance was taken

by roll call. Directors Johnson, Pack, and Sanchez were present. Director Gabriel was present via
teleconference.

. Board Announcements
No board announcements.

. Public Comment

An opportunity for public comment was provided, and individuals were given three minutes to address
the Board Members and Administration.

Public comment was received from Mr. Fendler (written comments also submitted) and Ms. Zanger.

. Consent Agenda - General Business

A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors —
June 4, 2025.

Page 7



B. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.
e Provider Services & Clinic Operations
e Skilled Nursing Facilities (Mabie Southside/Northside)
e Laboratory and Radiology
e Foundation Report
¢ Public Relations
e PMO Project Summary Report

C. Consider and Approve Policies:
. Manufacturer, Distributor, and FDA Recall Policy (New)
. Dress Code Policy (Revised)
. Vancomycin Dosing and Monitoring (New)
. MRI Response to Low Oxygen Monitoring (Revised)
. Extended-Infusion Piperacillin/Tazobactam (Zosyn) Protocol: Medication Administration IV
Infusion Guidelines (New)
. Surgical Antimicrobial Prophylaxis (New)
. Fixed-dose Kcentra for Reversal of Oral Anticoagulants (New)
. Guideline for the Administration of Crotalidae Polyvalent Immune Fab (CroFab) (New)
. IVPB to IV Push Conversion (New)
. Medication Reconciliation Policy (New)

D. Consider and Approve Resolution No. 2025-03 Adopting Amended and Restated District Bylaws.

E. Receive Minutes: Special Meeting of San Benito Health Care District Ad Hoc Committee Bylaws,
Policies and Procedures.

F. Consider and Approve Delineation of Privileges:
e Core-Breast Surgical Oncology Privileges.

Director Johnson presented the consent agenda items to the Board for action. This information is included
in the Board packet.

MOTION: By Director Johnson to approve the Consent Agenda — General Business, Items (A-F);
Seconded by Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried. Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Sanchez, and Gabriel. Approved 4-0 by roll
call.

Director Angelo arrived at the meeting at 5:10 pm.

. Receive Informational Reports

A. Chief Executive Officer (Verbal Report)
e Transaction Update
e Ad-Hoc Committee Update
e Helipad Update

Ms. Casillas updated the Board on the helipad. Robert Miller, of Hooper, Lundy Bookman, provided an
Ad Hoc Committee Update, along with Committee Members, Directors Pack and Gabriel. Materials for
the CEO report are included in the packet.

Page 8




An opportunity for public comment was provided, and comments were received from Mr. Fendler (written
comments were also provided).

B. Chief Nursing Officer
o Dashboard — June 2025

Ms. Descent provided a report that is included in the packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment; no comments were received.

C. Finance Committee — June 23. 2025
e Financial Statements — May 2025
e Finance Dashboard — May 2025
e Supplemental Payments — May 2025

Mr. Robinson reviewed the financial statements, dashboard, and supplemental payments. These reports
are included in the Board packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment; no comments were received.

6. Action Items

A. Consider and Approve a Professional Services Agreement for John Wiemann. [V. M.D.. for a three-
year term with an estimated amount of $795.000 annuallv.

Ms. Breen-Lema provided a report; materials are included in the packet.

An opportunity for public comment was provided; comment was received from Mr. Swett.

MOTION: By Director Gabriel to not approve the Professional Services Agreement for John

Wiemann, IV, M.D,, for a three-year term with an estimated amount of $795,000 annually; Seconded
by Director Pack.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Gabriel, Pack. Noes: Johnson, Angelo, and Sanchez.
Motion failed 2-3 by roll call.

Director Johnson requested a second motion:

MOTION: By Director Johnson to Approve a Professional Services Agreement for John Wiemann,

IV, M.D,, for a three-year term with an estimated amount of $795,000 annually; Seconded by Director
Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Johnson, Angelo, and Sanchez. Noes: Pack, Gabriel. Motion
carried and approved 3-2 by roll call.

B. Consider and Approve Amendment 1 of the Professional Services Agreement with Bav Area
Gynecologv Oncology. Inc.

Ms. Breen-Lema provided a report; materials are included in the packet.

An opportunity for public comment was provided; no public comment was received.

Page 9




MOTION: By Director Angelo to approve Amendment 1 of the Professional Services Agreement
with Bay Area Gynecology Oncology, Inc.; Seconded by Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Sanchez, and Gabriel.
Approved 5-0 by roll call.

C. Consider and Approve FYE 06/30/26 Operational and Capital Budgets.

Mr. Robinson reviewed the FYE 06/30/26 Operational and Capital Budgets; materials are included in
the packet.

An opportunity for public comment was provided; no public comment was received.

MOTION: By Director Angelo to approve FYE 06/30/26 Operational and Capital Budgets;
Seconded by Director Pack.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angeld, Sanchez, and Gabriel.
Approved 5-0 by roll call.

D. Consider Residencv Qualifications for District Zone 5. and Provide Direction to Staff. Including
Authorization to Investigate.

Director Gabriel recused himself from participating in the agenda item.

Ms. Casillas provided a verbal report.

An opportunity for public comment was provided; public comment was received from Ms. Gallagher.

MOTION: By Director Pack to authorize administration to retain a mutual third-party investigator to
look into the residency of the Director for District Zone 5, unless Dr. Gabriel or his attorney can
present sufficient evidence to establish residency by close of business tomorrow, Friday, June 27,
2025, or administration is able to confirm residency through the registrar of voters’ office.
Additionally, the Board grants administration the discretion to determine whether any documentation

provided by Dr. Gabriel or his attorney would be sufficient to establish his residency; Seconded by
Director Sanchez.

Moved/Seconded/ Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Pack, Angelo, Sanchez; Director Gabriel
recused. Approved 4-0-1 by roll call.

7. Public Comment

An opportunity for public comment on the closed session items was provided; no public comment was
received.

8. Closed Session
President Johnson announced the items to be discussed in the Closed Session, as listed on the posted

Agenda: a) Hearing/Reports, Credentials, Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety
Code Section 32106(b).

The members of the Board entered into a closed session at 7:31 pm.

9. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

Page 10




The Board of Directors reconvened to open session at 7:46 p.m. Counsel stated that one (1) item was
discussed: a) Hearing/Reports.

Under item a.) Hearings/Reports, the Credentials report was received and approved by the Board, on
motion of Director Johnson, Seconded by Director Angelo, by a vote of 5-0 by roll call.

10. Adjournment:
There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 7:47 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, July 24, 2025, at 5:00 p.m.

Page 11




-

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors

From: Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services
Date: July 11, 2025

Re: All Clinics - June 2025

Rural Health and Speciaity Clinics' visit volumes

Total visits | Total visiis
Clinic Location | cument prior month
month (June 2025)
Orfho;?edc 442 437
Specialty
Multi-Specialty 674 721
Sunset 574 655
Surgery & Primary 253 301
Care
San Juan Bautista 168 218
1st Street 685 722
4th Street 1,001 1,071
Barragan 521 589
Total 4318 4,734

Patient visits declined slightly this past month primarily due to some providers
taking time off.

Provider recruitment activities with anticioated start dates by specialty:

Gastroenteroloay: Sarathy Mandayam, M.D. - July 2025.
Psychiatry: Lourdes Greyson, M.D. — August 2025.

Breast Suraeon: Elaine Lee, M.D - August 2025.

Family Practice: Loc Do, P.A. - September 2025.

We are delighted to welcome Dr. Hiral Tank, a locum tenens general surgeon, to
our surgery clinic team. She has been well-received by both patients and staff,
who appreciate her collaborative approach and the quality of care she provides.

Page 12



)

Huz@\I HCkainf

o F |

Mabie South5|de/Nor'rh§|de Skilled Nursing Facility
Board Report — July 2025

To:  San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
From: Jaylee Davison, Interim Director of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility

1. Census Statistics: June 2025

Southside 2025 Northside 2025
Total Number of Admissions 12 Total Number of Admissions 6
Number of Transfers from HHH 11 Number of Transfers from HHH S
Number of Transfers to HHH 8 Number of Transfers to HHH 2
Number of Deaths 1 Number of Deaths 2
Number of Discharges 15 Number of Discharges 5
Total Discharges 1351 Total Discharges 5
Total Census Days 1360 Total Census Days 1420

Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of dlscharges Total
census excludes bed hold days.

‘2. Total Admissions: June 2025

Southside From Payor Northside : From Payor
8 HHMH Medicare 1 L.O.A CCcAa
1 Natividad Medicare 1 HHH CCA
1 HHH Re-Admit Medicare 4 HHH MA
2 HHH Obs. Medicare
Total: 12 Total:

‘3. Total Discharges by Payor: June 2025

Southside 2025 Northside 2025
Medicare 13 Medicare 3
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0
CCA 1 cca 0
Medical 1 Medical 0
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0
Hospice 0 Hospice 2
Private (self-pay) 1 Private (self ay) 0
Insurance 0 Insurance 0
Total: 16 Total: - 5

1

Page 13



4. Total Patient Days by Payor: June 2025

Southside
Medicare
Medicare MC
cca
Medical
Medi-Cal MC
Hospice
Private (self-pay)
Insurance
Bed Hold / LOA
Total:
Average Daily Census

2025
477
0
723
60
0
60

Northside
Medicare
Medicare MC
CCA
Medical
Medi-Cal MC
Hospice
Private (self-pay)
Insurance
8ed Hold / LOA
Total:

Average Daily Census

2025
77

1151
90

96

1420
47.33

Page 14



-

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
From: Bernadette Enderez, Director of Diagnostic Services
Date: July 2025

Re: Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging

Updates:

Laboratory

1. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities

- Update on chemistry analyzer project > 75% assay validation completed. Interface validation on going.
- Phase 2A construction update <> Construction contract completed. Construction to begin by 08/2025.

2. Llaboratory Statistics

June 2025 2025 YTD
Total Outpatient Volume 4066 25508
Main Laboratory 1237 7552
Mc Cray Lab 936 5519
Sunnyslope Lab 402 2466
SIB and 4™ Street 55 475
ER and ASC 1436 9496
Total Inpatient Volume 139 1017

Diagnostic Imaging

1. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Preparation for multi-modality trailer pad proposal
- Preparation for onsite CDPH inspection for main hospital
- Preparation for onsite MQSA inspection for Mammography

San Benito Health Care District
A Public Agency
911 Sunset Dnive, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 637-5711, hazelhawkins.com

Page 15



2. Diagnostic Imaging Statistics

-

June 2025 2025 YTD
Radiology 1679 10994
Mammography 666 4103
CT 991 5832
MRI 186 1147
Echocardiography 105 665
Ultrasound 709 4515

San Benito Health Care District

A Public Agency

911 Sunset Dnve, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 6375711, hazelhawkins.com

Page 16



A
FOUNDATION

TO: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors
FROM: Liz Sparling, Foundation Director

DATE: July 2025

RE: Foundation Report

The Foundation does not meet in July and will resume monthly meetings in August.

Financial Report June
1. Income $ 15,208.09
2. Expenses $ 4,400.00
3. New Donors 9
4. Total Donations 162
Allocations:

e No Allocations

Directors Report:

* Irene Davis, Foundation Board President, and I met and presented the Tranquility Room proposal to
Kathy Johnson and Tracy Taggart at the Community Foundation. The proposal consists of two rooms,
one at each Skilled Nursing Facility to be a dedicated space for residents with Alzheimer’s and/or
Dementia and their families. JayLee Davison, the Interim Director of the Skilled Nursing Facilities was
an integral part of the idea and presentation. The presentation was very well received by the
Community Foundation and they have approved a grant for $100,000. We have started meeting
with all the parties involved and the project is underway!

e With the end of the fiscal year, we have started working on our Foundation Audit.

Fundraising Committee:

* Asof]une 30, there have been 1958 total donations to our current campaign, “Invest in the Future of
San Benito County Healthcare, We Deserve It” raising $1,162,007.17.

Dinner Dance Committee

e Qur Dinner Dance event this year
will be at Leal Vineyards on
November 8, 2025. Save the
Date! We already have live . Y )
auction items including an all- , T [; S E\/ /i\ Jl (: E
inclusive trip to Moon Palace
Sunrise in Cancun, Mexico!
Sponsorship letters have been
mailed to past attendees and the
“Save the Date” has been posted
on social media. We are looking
forward to a wonderful event for =1 Moveking Flotpiia
the Hospital. FOUNDATION

NOVEMEER 8, 2025




Wd Z¥:T STOZ/ST/L

123101a SONH I0§

oppibdn

ssasB0id uoyONYsSUOD yos) SpOBAN-14-M
Bupuad "9) ju| Jo JOyOaUQ 61€ seoe/1/8 veoe/91/é BINYONUYSDYU) 5S3|DIM o
uoiD20] Ajuo Bins paw
Buiuuoid b
ANUIUOD O} ayIs ABAINs| sBDIAIES |DDIBING DINJUSA sjuaLBINDaYy pINGSY O ISAANS
PUD YBNO} NIOM jo10p0uQ|  -1aNS IPUSW STOL/IE/TY)  ¥2OT/0T/1L QdHsSO Jad ¥O Buyopdn :
O} 6// 8IS UO J0UDBI|
"wiaysAs ayy ur Buyooy
JOJO0P PUD JOSUNIOA
Buluuo|4 jloiAnd JaBouow S|Io3awW z20dog
o} BuiyouAs puo| Aiojaiq payied Azoadoy ooisser veoz/ese 10§ ADd O} 8diMS / SOJ 940D
Buisseo0oid A|jnyssaaons
9JD SUOKDODSUDI|
{uoloo0) Jusuouusd
O} 9A0W O} SIBZAIDUD
ApDaJ puD paddwoD
¥ £ 95044 QO] so129aq Fispud 9z02/1/2 S19ZAIDUY Apully | 9504Yd GO PINGay o7 L108eY
JHUN JNO B3SO A)IDIDIO ABojoipoy/q07 ajjapouseg
J0U (Im §03foud)
*$$900.d UOIDPIIBA dY}
10 %0/-09 UO Ajjuaund
feuuny J0}o84
NdA PUD Jaaias Wdy Jo >uo..hEo 'a D|9ADY USBADN asL y20Z/v1/1 1| uoyooyuaa Bupunodwo) All  sodaay Aopuioyd a9
uoyoINByuoD ooy Ud
'UOHD)|D§SUI PUD UDDS
100l "NIOM |DDIHOB(8
buictie/ EITIES ‘01081 SBUIYODW SIXAJ MON uoB|DISU| 9
™ PaZIIDUY 8DUO ASDWIoyd D|SADY USSADN §T0z/61/6 ¥zoz/¥/Tt Yy ) I
‘IDAOIAdD 18}8))|10H JO
Ajt> pup (Y OH Buipuay
(uoyozZudo LoRDDO)
Joj Buiddaud siopuaa S8DIAIDS
Bunqod) /. jo xeem 800 9|NdY|  ZBPUDLIBS DO szozT/1/1t vZoz/ZL/Y Ajundag juoju SDJND3S/SONH
uibaq o} painpayds| JO 1042811 OIS
UO|IANSUOD)
‘AInf 1oy
PaUUOId 4045 4O Buuoy it a10Mm}os Buynpayos asinN UO|DAOUY]
e J
PUD 559900 JaBoUDW 807 94NV Z3pubuiag oor SToz/1/8 vzoT/9/TL MLOS Duly
1O JO}DBI(J JOIUSS
jouapaId ¥H Bupuay
swpdn S10M| sepiouexois Ae)| VDK AN 0D #ipa uois esodind SWDN 129f0id

pipog Alnf - pipoqysoq jo9loid

Page 18



Wd Z¥'T SZOZ/ST/L

wiaysAs Buysxoy

'ssa1boid ul|  sedAas poddng USisl0
uoyoINBYUOD BIDMYOS 10}20uQ J0Iuas show Bnog wnipew seoe/iie $20T/1/1 Buuasuibua Juaund a8d0jday 108
9sDQDIOP 3y} pIng O}
PIPDYS JBI0HUOD/I00P
9)dwos job
O} JISiA BJISUO JOJ JIOPUBA
Upm Bujouipiood|  Aundas g jwbw $$300Y 100 Ano9 OpONIAA
‘wed Buppng| Biews3 jo Jojeig zajwoy abior uSiH Qel szoz/1i/e v 1000 + 0SS / Ajunoas N
anss| 0} paubisso
Bulaqg Jojo0HUOD
Buipuad ‘josloid
3y} paA0Iddo sy (VOH
‘UCI|DPUBWIWODS A
10498aQ SHOJS poay MOW
pinoid o} JouD3.| ABojoIpoy/qo WNIPSw PIOHUO ast asl dW uaym djay o} Jounalj pod Jefioi] Buibow,
‘papIwIgns [0s0dold
SJUBWIBNNDAS
A ‘o8 [BPOWBIPUD] 1y 4 51 sow ABOIOIPD
$SNOSIP O} PBINPaYos ABO|0IPDY/QO" suepouieg ybiH PIOH UQ qasl szoz/1/Lt JuBWIND® JO JUBLISSBSSY |CIBISOW [OIPDY«
2q 0} Buyssw
Jopsid ei9pu3 9} 4wigns j0sodo., apoibdn (
papiwqns (osodoid ABOOIPOY/ADT oHepOWSg PIOH VO qadl Q81 pajugns | d P N AW
pajugns SPJOPUDYS
WQOY PUD d¥DIW mm_wwww%mmum” show Bnog Qsl Qg1 | Aiejos '8 @ouDIIdWOD DIWsISS onwsIBg
4O M31A31 [oul Buipuad 1004 ’ IVOH 199w O} oppibdn
/ ‘asn jonp $J00(Q UCIPIODOY
12/4 4O A39M LID§s O} 19200
juadsa uaioy Geoe/L/8 SZOT/OL/E|  JO) MOJiD PUD WO 3y} JIds Wo0y UOZUOH
pauuD|d 5| UOYINLSUOD BuisinN JaIuD 0} $I00P UOIPIOIID BYj 85N J3)US7) S,USWOM
UOIDNISUOD UIbag
o} puad ayy sanss) pup| sadlAlRS poddng UOID}(DysUI B Ss800.d puusad [Wle]IteJ[[eJ3{V]]
supjd sy} pajdasdo 10031 10IUDS show Bnoq a8l yeoz/ee/el aj9idwiod o} Buuasaubu3 $I00(] ¢SS 1004 puz
SDY JBYSIIOH JO AiID
$82INC53
Buuodaid puo
BuyD20||D $40)204UOD
Qns SDY JOJODHUOD 104981Q z818pu3 PR o 1apowWa 200wy 0
PUD SUBROIUA DM ABOJOIPDY/AD syjepouseg 809 9z0Z/1/2 v202/€/9 4 Ud :gv140 |8p Y 18p -Reley}
uononisuooasd
Buuup|d - pazouy
uaaQg sy |ODJUOD)
FEICCPYR)
SI UCHDONLYSUOD §23(0.d sammsc Loddn Appgonay
49210 82UD)dWod LG 3 shiow 6nog 8€s Se0T/1/L yZoz/0L/1 '8 ADUBIDI3 3DUDYU3 juswaop|day Jejiog

{YDH Wol) JnoasQ|d
joioyjo Buipuad

J0}981Q J0IuaS

0} Jojiog Buysixg ao0|day

pipog Ajnf - piooqyspnq jo3foid

Page 19



Wd Zt'T SZ0Z/ST/L

ElatelifeY]
1apm 1o} uoyoiodaid
ul 96DWI UOYDISHIOM

‘aouopdwod

PJOPUDJS Ut UOISN|DUI PR vVvdiH Buipoddns uQ
pajsanbal puo opiIo 1140 104081Q cﬂEo nwz qel SZOZ/91/9 pup Adusiye moyom| -ubis ajburs sbojuoapy
Uiim pPaysay Alinissadonsg 108 BuiAcIdull ‘SWBJsAs |DDIUID piomio4 ojpaudw)
‘UOHDISHIOM 0} 52220 4235 '|SO} AQDUT
159} uo Buysay puo
dnjas joul pajeidwo)
‘sjuawannbal
puo Buuupid
PINUUOD IO} WD}
JOUIB Ul PUD AJUNDSS pubwap
: AQDIBY] |ODISA |epoway
“11 "SI0 Ui 93U ,M wo.wmw_.m opOXs3 unr a8l 5202/1/9 BUIOBUO UM IBY O e o kg
1M “PaAIRDaI UBaQ SOY ’ uoyo20| juaund Buipuodxgz| T :
UOHDDO| MBU O} ABY
‘pabys soy Suuuoid
|OljjUt PUD JOD HJOXIN
‘'s@aA0|dwa
0} poddns g aouoydwod
‘poy9|Idwod $92IN0SIY . WaysAS Juswaboubw
[o][¢] 9 AsojoinbBal aInsud 'sOIUISAD
uolDjuBWS|dW] [UDWNH JO 10283 IOLDL M3IQ wnipsw €8 seoe/e/e seoe/ol/y ».o _.u>oo_ 10 co_-o:m_c_EMo DADD7 PIOJUDH BY|
9ZIID{USD ' BIDWOINY
“Owap O
JINPaUDS 0} §1 A8y xau $52I1AISS
‘M8IA8) JO) pajuasaid 80D 34NV Z9PUDUIS4 201 qQdl ¥Z0Z/0L/é EleleTle ] WB)SAS IDD 8SINN
PUD PaD8(j02| JO JO|2aNQ JOSS
sipjap Buduy
‘uibaq uDD WajsAs pjo
JO {DACWI/UOHIIOWP RO
ol couo %“_mxww omm_m $901A49¢ poddn: spepoZRu[> Buleq 9 enp
104 IPUSd 6/4 MBS HOOAnS show Bnoq oal|  szoz/vi/L|  4nopesoyd ag o} paunbai podieH a3
Uo JOI PUD SIOPUSA JID JO}23uQ JOuBS § ¥ Ul POMOIID J66UO| OU
UlIM X|OmM SIS ‘POIUDID PUD WSISAS 444V UD S| WBJSAS
uUaaQq SDY UOHDZUOYIND
Aduabiawa (vDOH
pawuod 8q JoHdsSOy UDW 3Y) Ul DUBYSDD
seainies poddng sAow 6noQ PIOH UO adl sz0e/6z/1| @u AQ uoop 91gnop Joplwod| siooq 3ignoq Bing pew

0} spaau DO ‘PeABIaI
josodoud Jouoaly

J0J081Q JoaS

payos a1y Buysixa ub o0)day

pipog Anf - pipoqysobq joafoid

Page 20



Wd ZtT SZ0Z/ST/L

yjioay asAojdwa suljwoais

%001 {14 V101
%1l € MO
%SZ L wnipaw
%P9 8l UOH
% INNOD AMRNONd
SWali ONION3Id % ALIEONd 103rOud
%001 8T V101
%L [4
%l [4
%P | 14
%0 0
PaHOs %L (74
1O ;EDZADJ .
o1 06 pauubid %0 0 SION
SAI-0D pajouiss % INNOD SALVIS
% SNLVIS )SV1
$j0jo)
siodas
wbaq o} aAWwD Aay}
_,,M:m“ w,wocw_mtmﬂ i Heepa YBIH aoD|doy J8UUDS 1D
‘paooidal aqn; D spasu CloP0Y/q07 SispouIsy
auQ ‘sndas pasu
SADY M DY) 5,1D wiod
ul 3jis pjo Eog.wwwmmm%m_m suoHoISY 2Hand ‘@10pdn
toy auDyu
wuspuos ‘eooid waps|  PY° a,“wow%_z Jaybojog 81yuoH yBiH ST0Z/1/8 920Z/4T/9 PUD UBISOPaS JBUOHUI {auDjut
1BuDiul paubisapay 12814
‘paluapPI = 'SOUO PBAO| PUD AlILUD) JO)
$1SD} peusinbay BuisINN unw juaosag uainy ubiH a8l STOZ/S /L |920ds 91DALG D SO PAPSAUOD|  WOOY 310D SAIDIIOd
PUD Passassn Wooy ; ! 2q o} Wwoo! Bing/paw
‘sBuuaalds yyoay
SM/UIOBH g '$2INsOdXa ‘SUOKDZIUNUIW}
. 10 Algisia aaoidul) 210MJOS YJIDSH
ssas60.d Ul piing ays m..,,&o_aem 44N UOA yjeqozig ySiH Qs S20T/LT/9 % Buyoda, 9ouoKdwod|  ssAo/dW3 SOMNWL
1012340 8}DWoIND "‘BuDDy

pipog Ajnr - piooqysoq }o3loid

Page 21



Hazel Hawkins

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

MEMORANDUM
To: Board of Directors
From: Suzie Mays

Vice President, Information & Strategic Services

Date: July 15, 2025

Re: Policies for Approval

Please find below a list of policies with a summary of changes for Board of Directors

approval. All revised policies are available for review upon request. New policies are

included in the packet.

Policy Title

Summary of Changes

10483 Clinical Evaluation and
Management of a Transfusion
Reaction

Revised based on AABB Technical
Manual 215t Edition.

12383 Infection Control
Authority

Newly created to meet CMS requirement
for governing board to designate
authority for Infection Control Program.

11999 Infection Prevention &
Control Program

Updated to align plan with Joint
Commission, Title 22, and CMS
requirements.

10829 influenza and
Pneumococcal Vaccine
Program

Revised to remove requirements for
hospitals to offer influenza and
pneumococcal vaccinations.

10806 Transmission-Based
Precautions

Revised to update standard precautions
with current Centers for Disease Control
guidelines.

Page 22




7/18/25, 8:10 AM Infection Controf Authority Designation

DoclD: 12383
o Revision: (o}
HCIZQI HOWk'”S Status: Pending Committee
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL Approval

Department: Infection Control
Manual(s):

Policy : Infection Control Authority Designation

1. PURPOSE

a. To ensure compliance with the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS)
Conditions of Participation for Hospitals (42 CFR §482.42), this policy establishes the
requirement to designate, in writing, a qualified individual or group of individuals
responsible for the hospital's infection prevention and control program.

2. POLICY

a. San Benito Health Care District shall designate in writing an individual or group of
individuals as the Infection Control Officer(s) responsible for the development,

implementation, and oversight of San Benito Health Care District's infection prevention
and control program.

3. PROCEDURE
4. Designation

a. The Governing Body shall appoint, in writing, a qualified Infection Control Officer
(ICO) or team.

i Name(s) of the designated individual(s): Shonna Avant, RN, BSPH, CIC,
CPHQ, CPPS

ii. Title and department: Director of Quality, Safety, and Infection Prevention

5. Qualifications
a. The designated ICO(s) is qualified through education, training, experience, or
certification in infection prevention and control.
b. Acceptable qualifications include:
i. Certification in Infection Control (CIC)
ii. Experience in epidemiology or hospital infection control
iii. Advanced training in public health or nursing with infection prevention focus
6. Responsibilities
about:blank

13

Page 23



7/18/25, 8:10 AM

Infection Control Authority Designation

Develop and implement hospital-wide infection prevention and control policies and
procedures that adhere to nationally recognized guidelines.

Establish and maintain a surveillance system for detecting, investigating, and
controlling healthcare-associated infections (HAls), including auditing of adherence
to infection prevention and control policies and procedures by hospital personnel.

Collaborate with all departments and report infection control data and infection
prevention and control issues to the governing body, medical staff, and quality
committees.

Communicate and collaborate with the individuals participating in the antibiotic
stewardship program.

Training and education of hospital personnel and staff, including medical staff,
and, as applicable, personnel providing contracted services in the hospital, on the
practical applications of infection prevention and control guidelines, policies, and
procedures.

f. Maintain documentation of the infection prevention and control program and its
surveillance, prevention, and control activities

7. Documentation and Review

a. Written designation and job description of the ICO shall be maintained in the
designated individual's personnel records.

b. This policy shall be reviewed annually or as regulatory requirements change.

REFERENCES

. 42 CFR §482.42 - Condition of Participation: Infection Prevention and Control Program
accessed on May 18, 2025.

. CMS State Operations Manual, Appendix A - Survey Protocol, Regulations and Interpretive
Guidelines for Hospitals accessed on May 18, 2025.

AFFECTED DEPARTMENTS

All departments and locations within San Benito Health Care District

Document Owner:
Collaborators:

Approvals
- Committees:

- Signers:

Original Effective Date:

Revision Date:
Review Date:

about:blank

Avant, Shonna

Greenlee, Arielle
Descent, Karen
Silva, Victoria

(0572972025 ) Infection Control, ( 07/08/2025 ) Chief Nursing Officer,
(7/17/2025) Medical Executive Committee, (7/03/2025) Policy Committee,
( Not yet approved ) Board of Directors,

Page 24

23



7/18/25, 8:10 AM Infection Control Authority Designation
Attachments:
(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents:
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purpases. The current version is
in Lucidoc at
http://hzh-iis.hazelhawkins.com/?returnto=%2Fcgi%2F doc-gw. pi%3Fref%3Dhhmh%3A12383%240.

about:blank a3

Page 25



MEMOERAL HOSPTTA)

NURSING EALCRITES

HEALTH AGEN

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
APPLICATION FOR CLINICAL PRIVILEGES

FAMILY MEDICINE

Name of Applicant:

In order to be eligible to request clinical privileges for both initial appointment and reappointment,
a practitioner must meet the following minimum threshold criteria:

» Education: M.D. or D.O.

» Formal Training: The applicant must demonstrate successful completion of an ACGME or
AOA approved post-graduate residency program in Family Medicine.

Certification: Current Board Certification in Family Medicine by the American Board of Family
Medicine, or current, active participation in the process leading to certification.

For Obstetric Privileges - Current Family Medicine Core privileges and successful completion of an
ACGME or AOA approved post-graduate residency program in Family Medicine. If requesting C-
Section privileges, an Obstetrics Fellowship must be completed.

For Family Medicine Outpatient privileges- In addition to the above, a minimum of a Basic Life
Support (BLS) certification.

> Required Clinical Experience: The applicant for initial appointment or reappointment
must be able to demonstrate that he/she has satisfactorily performed services as an attending
physician in the past 24 months for at least:

1. 30 adult inpatients for the Family Medicine- Inpatient Hospitalist Core
2. 24 vaginal deliveries for the Obstetric Core
3. 200 patient encounters for Outpatient Clinic

If the applicant meets the above criteria, he/she may request privileges as specified below.

Page 26



| hereby request privileges as follows:

Family Medicine- Inpatient Hospitalist Core Privileges

o General Medicine Core:

Diagnose, treat, and manage acute and chronic medical conditions requiring inpatient care (this may include patients
in the intensive care unit) Core procedures include thoracentesis, paracentesis, joint aspiration, arterial puncture,
gastric lavage, incision & drainage of simple abscess, venous cutdown, proctoscopy, lumbar puncture, central venous
line placement. Manage preoperative and postoperative medical care in collaboration with surgical teams. Provide
discharge planning and coordination, including medication reconciliation and follow-up arrangements. Provide end-of-
life care and palliative management as appropriate.

Requested Approved

(®] Obstetric Core:

Privileges include admission, workup, diagnosis, and provision of treatment to perinatal patients (including diet-
controlied diabetics) and perform normal spontaneous vaginal delivery, and uncomplicated postpartum care.
Mandatory OBG consuits are required for pre-term labor < 35 weeks, diabetes in pregnancy not controlled by diet,
eclampsia, pre-eclampsia, pre-term induction, breech delivery, multiple gestations or other malpresentations, possible
placenta previa or abruption placenta, prolonged active phase of labor, prolapse of cord, intra-partum or pre-partum

obstetric sepsis, suspected fetal distress, or pregnancy beyond 41 weeks gestation OR, OTHER COMPLICATED
OBSTETRICAL CONDITIONS

Requested Approved

Surgical Assist Privileges

Privileges include assist in surgery under the direct supervision of the surgeon, including (but not limited to) suture
uncomplicated lacerations, incise and drain abscesses, simple skin biopsy or excision, remove non-penetrating
comeal foreign body, preoperative care of surgical patients, and postoperative medical care of surgical patients with
the approval of the attending physician or surgeon. Cannot act as the attending surgeon.

Requested Approved

Page 27




Family Medicine- Outpatient Clinic

Privileges include evaluation, diagnosis, and provision of non-surgical treatment, including consuitation for patients in
an outpatient setting in need of care to treat general medical problems. Order and interpret diagnostic tests, including
laboratory work, radiology, EKGs, and other imaging studies. Provide preventive care, including immunizations,
cancer screenings, and wellness exams. Pre- and post-operative follow-up care, pediatric and well-baby care
including well-child visits, developmental screenings, and acute care management. Procedures include, but are not
limited to, joint, tendon and bursa aspiration or injection, steroid injection, incision & drainage of simple abscess,
wound care, including suturing & minor debridement, splinting/casting, skin biopsy, and foot care.

Requested Approved

ADDITIONAL AND SPECIFIC PRIVILEGES REQUESTED

PROCEDURE REQUESTED APPROVED

Page 28



I certify that | have had the necessary training and experience to perform the procedures | have
requested.

Name of Applicant: Date:

Signature of Applicant:

APPROVALS:

All privileges delineated have been individually considered and have been recommended based
upon the physician's specialty, licensure, specific training, experience, health status, current
competence and peer recommendations.

Applicant may perform privileges as indicated.

Exceptions/Limitations: 3 None O Specify below

Medicine Chair Date

Perinatal Chair Date
4

Page 29



HUMAN RESOURCES DASHBOARD 2025

DEPARTMENTAL METRICS

April May June YTD{Jan-June)
# Employees 707 706 710 706
# New Hires 9 3 11 47
# Terminations 7 Fy 3 37
Overall Tumover 1.0% 0.6% 0.4% 5.24%
Nursing Turnover 1.5% 2.3% 1.5% 10.35%
Terms By Union April May June YTD{Jan-June)
The California Nurses Association {CNA)
2 3 2 14
National Union of Healthcare Workers (NUHW)
2 1 1 15
California License Vocational Nurses (CLVN)
0 0 0 0
Engineers and Scientists of California (ESC)
0 0 0 1
Non-Union
3 0 0 7
Terms By Reason (V=Voluntary & IV= Involuntary) April May June YTD(Jan-june)
Personal (V) 3 2 1 16
New Opportunity(V) 1 2 0 8
Retirement (V) 0 0 1 3
Schedule (V) 1 0 0 1
Job Abandonment (V) 1 0 0 1
No Reason Given (V) 0 0 0 0
Relocating (V) 0 0 1 3
School (V) [)] 0 ] 0
No Show (V) (] 0 0 0
RIF(IV) 0 0 0 0
Performance (IV) 1 0 0 5

Page 30




Chief Nursing Officer Report

July 2025

e Transition to insulin pens

¢ We have not identified any hospital acquired CAUTI, CLABSI, or C.Diff infections since
the beginning of the year.

CNO Dashboard June 2025

Description June 2025 Budget
ED Visits 2,149
ED Admission % 10%>
LWBS % <2.0%
Door to Provider 10 min
MS admissions 108
ICT admissions 16
Deliveries 40
OR Ispatient 39
ASC/OP Cases 72
Gl 58

‘Within 10% of 'l'a=et ‘

Jume 2025 |Budget - Year
Actual : To Date Total

26,713

10%>

<2.0%

10 min

1,266

191

392

424

594

1093

Actual -YTD |

Total

1014

Page 31



OR Cases by Service Line

2025 APR MAY JUN
Surgery Total 105 97 185
'GENERAL SURGERY 29 %6 *
ORTHOPEDIC TOTAL 32 44 39
UROLOGY 3 : -
OB/GYN TOTAL 5 - -
C/SECTIONS 7 . .
ENT TOTAL > N 2
GI TOTAL 5 — -
VARG 89 56 83
Gl IND - 3
Gl INPT | = .
2024 APR MAY JUN
Surgery Total 1 100 154
GENERAL SURGERY 48 40 38
ORTHOPEDIC TOTAL 15 29 -
PODIATRY 6 3
UROLOGY 5 a
|os/eYn TOTAL 24 30 26
C/SECTIONS 7 8 16
ENT TOTAL 0 T :
Gi TOTAL 108 115 58

Page 32



N

REGULAR MEETING OF THE FACILITIES AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
MONDAY, JULY 21, 2025 - 4:30 P.M.
SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2"° FLOOR - GREAT ROOM

San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, comprehensive health care
resource for its patients, physicians and the community.

1. Call to Order

2. Approve Minutes of the Facilities Committee Meeting of May 15, 2025
e Motion/Second

e Action by Committee/Roll Call Vote

3. Update on Current Projects
e HHH Helipad Repair

4. Review Financial Updates
e Financial Statements — June 2025
¢ Finance Dashboard — June 2025
¢ Supplemental Payments — June 2025

5. Public Comment

This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to exceed
three (3) minutes, on matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board Committee, which are
not on this agenda.

6. Adjournment

Page 33



-

The next Facilities and Finance Committee meeting is scheduled for Monday, August 25, 2025 at
4:30 p.m.

The complete Finance Committee packet including subsequently distributed materials and presentations is
available at the Finance Committee meeting and in the Administrative Offices of the District. All items appearing

on the agenda are subject to action by the Finance Committee. Staff and Committee recommendations are subject
to change by the Finance Committee.

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to
attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular business hours at 831-

636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable
accommodations.

Page 34



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DISTRICT FACILITIES & SERVICE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, MAY 15, 2025
4:00 P.M. - GREAT ROOM

MINUTES

I.  CALLTO ORDER/ROLL CALL:
Devon Pack called the meeting of the District’s Facilities & Service Development Committee to order at 4:03p.m.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Devon Pack, Board Vice President in Attendance
Nick Gabriel, DO, Board Secretary

Mary Casillas, VP, Chief Executive Officer in Attendance
Mark Robinson, VP, Chief Finance Officer in Attendance
Amy Breen-Lema, VP, Clinics, Ambulatory & Physicians Services in Attendance
Karen Descent, VP Chief Nursing Officer in Attendance
Suzie Mays, VP Information & Strategic Services in Attendance
Doug Mays, Senior Ditector, Support Services in Attendance
Tina Pulido, Facilities Administrative Support Supervisor in Attendance

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

The minutes of the District’s Facilities & Service Development Committee of February 20, 2025 were reviewed by the
Committee.

HI. UPDATE ON PROPOSED PROJECTS:

HHH Radiology Imaging Pad (Doug M.)

Doug M. reported that we are looking for a temporary location for an imaging trailer. After discussions with
HCAI, any mobile unit put in any location for more than 30 days must be treated as a permanent structure. Per
code it also has to be a minimum of 30 feet from the hospital. We are working with our Architect to come up
with final numbers to bring this project to the Administrative Team.

IV.  UPDATE ON CURRENT PROJECTS:

PAGE | 10f2

HHH Boiler Replacement (Doug M.)

Doug M. reported that the installation portion of this project has been completed; we are cutrentdy watting on
the finalized documents from HCAI

HHH Lab Analyzer Validation Phase 1 (Doug M.)
Doug M. reported that the validation process is ongoing and estimated to be completed by June.

HHH Lab Analvzer Replacement Phase 2 (Doug M.

Doug M. reported that this project has already gone to the Board for approval, The Core Group won bid. We
are finalizing the contract with our Attorney and should be starting the project as soon as it’s completed. Amy
L. will be assisting with Project Management and the Attorney to get the contract completed. Mary C. inquired
if we are still in budget and Doug M. stated, yes. Estimated time for the project to start is the end of June.

HHH OR Waiver (Doug M.)

Doug M. reported that due to the current system in the main hospital OR’s it is difficult to keep the humidity
and temperature in compliance. We received a waiver from CDPH to use the ASC for all inpatient and
outpatient surgenes. The waiver expires in January 2026. In order to get an extension on the Flex waiver, we
must have an approved project submitted with HCAI before the January 2026 expiration date.

Page 35



e  Hugs Infant Alarm Upgrade (Doug M.)

Doug M. reported that before we can start this project we have to complete the Wifi upgrade that was previously
approved by the Board. The Wifi access points have been completed throughout the hospital. The Hugs system
documents have been submitted to HCAI to start the project.

V. UPDATE ON PENDING PROJECTS:

HHH Lab Analvzer Replacement Phase 3 (Doug M.)
Doug M. reported that we are in the planning and design stages with Treanor.

e HHH Lab Analvzer Replacement Phase 4 Doug M)
Doug M. reported that we are in the planning and design stages with Treanor.

o HHH CT Scanner Replacement (Doug M.\

Doug M. reported that before we can start planning this project we will have to address the mobile trailer and
trailer pad.

VL. UPDATE ON MASTER PLAN:
¢ SPC-4d (Doug M.)
Doug M. reported the following:

1) Small and Rural Hospital Relief Program Application (PIN 71)

Doug M. reported that we received notification on 5/14 from HCAI that we have been awarded
a $185,000 grant for reimbursement for the monies spent so far on design fees. HCAI also said
if we obtain cost estimates from contractors, we can initiate another grant application. As part of
the Seismic compliance plan we are required to have a water rationing plan in place. We are
working on the plan with our Architect.

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT:

There was no public comment.

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS:

There was no other business.

VIiI. ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:18 PM. The next Faciliies Committec
meeting is scheduled for June 19, 2025 at 4:00pm.

DISTRICT FACILITIES & SERVICE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, MAY 15, 2025, 4:00PM
PAGE | 20f 2

Page 36



San Benito Health Care District

A Public Agency
911 Sunset Drive
o Haze Hollister, CA 95023-5695
Hawkins (831) 637-5711
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
SKILLED NURSING FACILITIES
HOME HEALTH AGENCY
July 21, 2025 Pre-Audit
CFO Financial Summary for the District Board:
For the month ending June 30, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus is $881,101 compared to a
budgeted Surplus of $742,604. The District exceeded its budget for the month by $138,497.

YTD as of June 30, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus (L.oss) is $31,126,910 compared to a budgeted
Surplus of $6,867,582. The District is exceeding its budget YTD by $24,259,328.

Acute discharges were 161 for the month, exceeding budget by 6 discharges or 4%. The ADC was
15.10 compared to a budget of 14.95. The ALOS was 2.81. The acute I/P gross revenue was slightly
less than budgeted by (0%) while O/P services gross revenue exceeded budget by $1.69
million or 6% over budget. ER I/P visits were 127 and ER O/P visits were over budget by 64 visits or

3%. The RHCs & Specialty Clinics treated 3,202 (includes 521 visits at the Diabetes Clinic) and 1,116
visits respectively.

Other Operating revenue exceeded budget by $1.58 million due to:

1) $1,162,892 for CY 2024 IGT and (Direct) HQAF funding.
2) $112,289 for CCAH - HQIP and $112,547 higher Magellan Rx rebate.

Operating Expenses were over budget by $743,827 due mainly to: Registry of $306,782 (partially
offset by savings in Salary & Wages of $130,195. Benefits and Supplies were over budget by $189,923

and $150,935 respectively due mainly to an increase in Employee Health insurance claims and
Orthopedic surgery cases.

Non-operating Revenue exceeded budget by $122,348 which included donations from the Auxiliary
and Foundation of $45,000 and $83,000 respectively.

The SNFs ADC was 92.60 for the month. The Net Surplus is compared to a budget of
$127,400. YTD, the Net Surplus is $1,569,427 exceeding its budget by $384,177.

Health, Compassion & Innovation

Page 37



¥59°50%'TT 1443 €97°VED 92 996 '509 L Stz’ove ‘9z LZO €66 141 (616 °TT) t6€ ' Z6¢ zLv'oRe (53071) IWOONT ONILY¥EJO LIN
669°05€C 29T S 0L '6T6'S TEZ'SZ9'8¥T SE6 VY5 55T 690°LES 11 I3 165°L06 GE¥'SIC 2T 620 €T ET SESNAIXE TYLOL
SSLTETL’S L 6ST 6LE 56L°L0Z'S ¥56°985 'S L60°6TS 14 8sT 9V Lzv'eey SUS 9Py YBHLO
scv'cay €9 €2Z€ 607 128 ' ¥EE »OT VS ts9's (za) ({79 1] 6¥9 L2 6Ly L1STUBLINT
9¥6'9.8 '€ (1} (99581} yZL'TTOE est‘toe’t 006 '81¢ (49 tsez'n) LLv'ote TET 9T LYOWY ¥ NOLLVIDINdEd
TS0ESL T € 290291 YOE ' 99L'T TLE'OEE'T 5Z6 €1 ST YeET'CZZ Ty ST LYR NS 4 TYLRAY
TTL 89L KT ot LYY T 65¥'655'TT 00Z'700°9T vez'96€'t 4 Z6Y 9LT 08Y PTIT'T L6 L52° Y SADIANES QESVHO¥OA
119 98¢ 2T zt €TV SEY'T ¥06'L90°TL L1605 €T [ {14h ¢4 91 6EL’9ST 915°'LLE SST'PEL'L SHIN4405
6LE'ZSE 6T s oLy ‘€LB 795 °T05°61 Z€0'SLE’0L 08L°L6S'T L] £SL'62T 626°'703°1 T89'2eL'Y S$334 TYNOISSHJONd
T9L 8T LT (s} (zzg'89t’ 1) LYE'6E6°LT STS'0LS 9T LSTI TRy ot (12 28 ¢44 909 8EE°T S¥8°6S5°Z BLIJENTE ABROISWNE
ST BYS'Y LET 9€L’9SL ZEE'ISL'T 890 '805°9 (11 28 11 114 ¥6T'6SE (7% & 144 TLT 865 AULSTONY
T6L°LPT LS (z) {818'056) €86°2L9' 19 $9t'22L ‘09 €09°'T66 'S [£4] (z9€ €TT) SEEELT’S €L6'610°S $3OYM 7 SHINYIVS
TSESNEdXE ONIIVHAd0
¥SE'95L €T 1z $LE'€S6°0€ LLY'TET ST TST°'S0T 28T 96€'0ES'TT 3 L9568 €28 L0L’ZT 106 °C09 '€ NNIATY ONILVYBLO 13N
Z6E°980°L 68C TSB'0Z0'61 2L5°T0S Y rzY'To9 'St £59°'909 062 vrz'98s’t 1688 °LHS STU'PEL'Z ANKAASY ONILVHE4O HAKLO
796 °'699 '9¥1 L} ZZT (€6 ' 1T $09 ‘699°¥Y1 LZLTOG 95T €9L'5T6°TT (9) (ZL5°069) 8Y6'6ST'TT 9LT'69¥'TT BNNEASY INSILVA 13N
EZP’6ST'86L s T08'TTL €T 6TZ'TEL L6Z 020 €SP’ T1IE T6Z'66%'ST ot 996°5L5°2 €0Z'S96°Y 69Z°196°LZ ANNBABY WO¥d SNOILONCEA TYLOL
1862°Z9S) t06°'£01 0 106°¢€0T (596 '09) T06°€0T [} 106 °C0T HOTTY TYALIVALNOD SaBd\LSITELI4SOH
¥LL'LOO'SS ] €L9°SLT'Y fvetzo’zs TZY'L6T°9S 050°05€°9 [14 08L'9£9 LL9’ec’y LS¥'500°S SLNZWLSALAY ANV STYILOVEINGD ¥IHLO
816 vEY (§4 8) L '1s) 16€°'69% LyY9’ety 660'vE (e (ese’vy) LLE'6E v20°Sse TN ALIEVHD
996800 'TT Lte 1zZL'562'C »EV'96C'9 stz'zes’e ¥56°106°¢C 86 865°51S Lo '8Ts SBL'EVO’T ISKadXE 183d ave
089 °692°L1T 0 (Ls1°500) Z69°'96L 811 SES ‘169811 ESTIV6L’6 (s {0ES ' ¥59) 99Z°'0L6°6 91L°'ST5°6 SEONVAOTTV TNALIVELIOD TVD- 1IN
ZBS 0V V1T 9 Lov'E0t L ¥69'9¥T 02T TOT 0S¥ L2T 669°669°S °T 0L5'880°T 962 '8L0°0T 99€°¢98'TT SEINVMOTTY TNNLIVEINGD SUVOIGEW
(ENNEABY WOY¥d SNOTLIONARA
¥BE‘EZB VYN ] TT6 '¥S9'ST ¥Z8 '0BE'TYY 9¥L 'S0 99y ¥EO'STY'LE s Y6E'SER'T TETSPTLE $Z9'080°6€ SANIAHY INSILVd SEOMO 'TV.LOL
809718 LTE 9 T6T'HT0° 1T 508°9Z¥ ' IET L60 LSP ZSE sst'sve’sz 9 896°269°T 18Z°'188 LT 69Z°¥LS 6T AONSASY INSILVALOO S508D 'TVIOL
908 'Z96 96 €11 Q 96 'C11 060°L8 996 €11 [} ¥96 ‘€11 SNNAARY d\O STEA\LSITVII4SOH
z88°6¥6 ' 92E $ 92C VL6’ 0Z 508 °BLY TEE CET E¥C25C $92°LSL"ST 9 ¥00'6L5°T 8z 'Te8 L2 ST '09% ‘6L ANNAANY INIIINGLNG KYVTIIONV
969°910°LTY ¥ 0€9°'929’ 610’256 ‘01T 6¥9°8L5°STL 6L86LS 1T z 9I¥'TEY 0S6°€9L°6 9LE ISP’ HANAASY LNEILVYENI SSOUD TVIOL
99%°TS0°T 8SL°081 0 85L 08T 9ET ' HTIT 8sL 08T o 9SL°08T INNIAEE 4\I SAEI\LSITYLIISOH
0z9’zLL 08 s LY9'9EY’2 str'viz'ey L5L'059 05 yeLE6ZY'S (e (9v1’9Le) SGY 900" " 09Z°TEL'E SONBASY INEILYANI ASYTIIONV
866°L0L T € TLE'VES 6LY'98S T 058 T8’ ¥T OET TI¥ T 1] €509 6€25°'L00'2 090°880°Z GNNEASY BENILNO¥ JNE
£19° 900 0¥ v yS8 PTIY' T 0EY 'SP '6C »8Z '¥9s’0Y 6ET’S60'Y 9 €0Z°L0Z ST0'9YL € L1348 1 244 SANARY ENILNOY ALADV
‘ANNRABY INBIIVE SSOUD
Yz /0€/90 IDNCTAVA IOAVIAVA sT/0€/90 s$z/0¢€/%0 »T/0¢/9¢0 LONVIEVA sz/0c/90 §2/0¢/90
WA WOIUd Loovse oxM/B04 2spand ™OLOY 2 WOTNL IREDNEL l1spaos TEOLOV
T 2 -V T S LT B e L L T L bbbt |

GENIEHOD

$T/0£/90 QOIUNE WOd
€2056 W ‘SIISITION
- TELILSOR TYINCHEN GMIANVE THSVE

T 39vd

VEAVTIQS ©1380
LT ® SZ/YT/Lo @3eg

Page 38



36T ZT

669°'SYL’RT &

BET79LT

LS TBYL

876 06T

[:3:24

A6 TT

20621

Azt

ov6’'szz've §

L1420 4

et

LRSS ]

0£0°ZL9'6 §

160°LT 898791 e ot 2€9°0
29T 6L a(zy 6} 2(62°0)
319 81 309 91 AsU e AZE'O
OLE"LEB'ET & TES'0P0’'Z $ 869°TT [14- R84 41 $

$98°S

360°€

299°¢L

868 °IL6

18%°9

j08°¢

A6 L

soL‘va0‘T §

NIDWWM (5§507) SAT4AnNSs 1N

NID¥NVW ONILVENLO

NIOWWW WOINE

varad

$T/0¢/90 QOTMEL WO
2056 © ‘ABISITION
CENITHOD - TYLISB0H TUINOMEN SMIXAVE TEIVE

mszomsszasy  eseeasme  Nweemmessums b - aedBaEERRATE & [ ——
L8 LR ‘ST £€5¢ BZE6SZ° VT TES°L98°9 016 92T '1¢ £€29'198°1 61 L6V BET ¥09°Th 101°T88 {55071} SNTEYNS LAN
BTz ZRZ'Y S es0'szz 9£9°192°% 965989V 965’898 € 9TY'0ST [2 .41 114 6€29°'00% (3SNHAXA) /INNBAER ONILVHI40-NON TYLOL
0 0 0 [ 0 o 0 ] [ 0 SNOILAGIYINGD NOILVHOGYTI00
152’6 668'91 [ 668°'9T 09y '€ z0Z'z [ zoz’z ZHOONT LNEMLSHANT
(119’069} € (€£9°6) (zeL'eee) (595 °22%) (90916} T (092) (1s9°z2) (116 ‘za) HASNHAXE YE40-NON WHHLO
z8z'907 (e) (1es’'y) 968 '061 580981 9z€ ' 91 (er) (zoe'2) 806°'ST 99T €1 SONSASY ¥SJO-NON ¥SHLO
(€69 'vz8) 0 (s} (ZL6'0BL} (LL6°08L}) (12¢'99) [ ] {180 °59) (190 °S9) ASNAE\ANNIATY NI QNOE 09
YOE'YEL'T 1< 099°%Z 086°0TT 2 O¥8°SET'Z 611’092 z99°vt St6'SLT LS 00T SIXYL 40¥d ANOE OD
z1B‘9s8’C Q S0Y’E 99 '€68°T 698°968°C 66 '€6S 1 s0%'¢ (4488 4 24 LTS Y2 ANNEASY X¥L ALUSAONd
z5L'06€ zzY ¥HL YET 000°09T | 1788 114 S28°99T €982 (115 $41 000°S [1244:14¢ SNOTLVNOG
*ESHE4XS\SNHEASY ONILVABA0-NON
$Z/0¢/90 TONVTAVA ST/0%/90 $T/0€/90 ¥Z/06/90 LRIV TONYTAVA s£/08/90 sz/oc/90
WX ¥OIvs DoEusd Lapang TV L WOTWA mRouns omM/$0d 1zpang LDV
meesssecccccacacccenona o RIVGE-OL- VAR cecmmcemaams ceccan] fesmesecmacecacecaccccecaccc cRANON JMNNEAD-s-csssenm s tmmnrasanenanann]

7 agved

winviIas ‘Ia8n
ZELT ® ST/¥TI/LG :R3eq

Page 39



[ mmme e e oo - EIVQ-OL-¥VEA- - - -

LE6'TVL'® sTe’T L9509 €2 910°58¢L "L €85 °SEY'ST 090°¢9T° 1 1] €85°'991 TIT' 962 v69 ' VGY (9S07) EWOONI ONILVYAJO LaN
vZY'E92 121 s 6Ly EIY'Y 681°2C% 921 999158 TE€T 655°00Y 6 L z8'EvL vL6 TSV 0T 108967 11T SASN34XE TVIOL
€L LS9’y ] L' I9¢ SEE‘Z¥S’ 30S°v06°Y €0L 1Sy [] e ot E68°€LE »5T°'90% HARLO
(14 28413 €9 €2 602 28 'PLE (1388 127 £59°s toLe ' zz) 6%9°¢e (Y2 3 2 LSEYALNT
€L B0V L o (800°9L}) 08T LYE'E ZLZEEE’C LeL ‘6Lt (x (eez’'T) 0% 'BLT tA T TR A LEONY 7 NOLLYIDEW4Ed
SL9°8ELT £ CEZ Ly 134 281 TAR 959°2098°1 TV TIT 0 (897) 31884 24 SE0 BT TVINTY
s9P'9TL 2 [ €68°20C'2 181°905°2T ¥e0°TT8 9T £99°182'T € 210°16 £L0°'8z0’ T SPE‘ETT T SEDTA¥AS qESYHOUN
969'0¢2 1Y €1 €20°56€°¢L S¥L'TTE 0T 89L°L0E°TT TE6'6SS A SE6°0ST z96'o0E L68°T€0°T SEIT4408
659°'SZC'6T s z66°'vL8 025 'ELY'ET Z15'9¥¢ 02 0L5°66S°T ] tve'6zt $29°009°'T zevrotL’t S2AA TYNOLESBEA0NA
76525081 {s) (Z91°166) L' 0L’ XL &€¥U'6L9 02 6€85°€Y 1t €26 681 [{7AR S AR ¥99°'t00°Z SLIZ8NEE 83X07TdWE
ZIL'BOT ¥ (324 P09 TYPYE 000'00Y°Z y09°298°S £81'95) 33 28¢°90€ 000°002 ZBL 90§ XULSTOIY
[ 1248 133014 (z) {685'60Z°1) £LS'Lav’6y ¥o6‘LLT By §90°915'¥ (c) {SET'0€EX) 8o0°LotT’Y £18°9L6°¢€ SHOYN 7 BEIAVIVS
:SASNBAXH ONILVHRAIO
T9€°9000¢ET vz 990°0L0°0E soz’LIT 9LT 1T L8L BST 0z9’L9s’0t 6 [ 4 Ak413 S80°6%L°0T S$6¥°189°1T EONEASY ONILV¥ESO SLNOV 1IN
260'980 L €82 £58°'020°61 LS 198’9 Zy'zo9°'sz €59°909 062 I 98S’T T80 LYS SET’PEL'L ANNTASY DNILV¥EIO ¥AHLO
696 °616°22T 6 ¥61'6%0° 1T £€9°5€9"TZT LZ0'9@9°ZET L96°796'6 (9) (v€8'€59) »07 'T0Z ‘0T OLE'LYS'E BNNIASH INSILVd 4100V LEN
S0L'T6S €62 5 0ZLEYT'ET $TSP9T 6T ¥¥Z'80%'30€ 968 'T¥E'ST 0T ¥9€ '0EC 2 592509 'vZ 609 ‘'SE6 9T ANNIATY WOMd SNOILO0UEd 3LMIV TYLAL
(86Z°Z5) 106 '€0T [ 106 €01 (596 °08) 106°€07 [} 106 €01 ROTTVY TVALOVELNOD SABA\1ISIIVIIASOH
TEB'0E9'YS ] 590°1E0'% 600°'9€9 1S vL0'L99'SS oLL'TIE'S 44 2T ETS R STLY SS0°6VR’Y SINERLSALQY ANV STYILOVALROD ¥AHLO
91z ' t8Y (v2) (zev ety T6C°69Y 607°9S€E 660°vE (L) (ESE°PT) LLE6E [ 2408814 FUVD ALIAVHD
190°L0T° 1T Le 88y LBZ°T ¥59'9EL'9 T86°£25'8 €8T 906°'C zot €96 '0€5 Letr'ezs 0ST'vs0°T ASNI4AXT 1980 ave
86%'929 5T 0 085°LSY E6Z°PIE'LLT €LO°TLL LT 96T 'T5% '€ {s) (566°09Y) b0 YYE'6 060 ‘S6E°6 SHONVAOTTY TVALOVAINGD TYO-IGER
SEE'66L TTT [ [ELRETA 0} LEE'809’LIT S0z 'se6 €21 Z09°LE9’S Lt vZ9°S99°T 99L°290°6 06€°905'TT SEONVHOTTY TYALOYVELNOD HHVOIGIK
‘RLADY BONZASY WO¥d SNOILINAEG
SL9'TIS 9TY 9 €16°Z6T"Y LST'006 YTV 0L0 €60 '6EW €58°'%0€°S€ s TES'9LY’T 6¥¥ 908 vE 08628y’ AONSABY LRIILVE LLADY 950¥D TVIOL
B89 'Z18 LZC 9 z6z'820 12 S08°'8Z%'TCC L60°'L5¥'TSE SST'SPR’ST 9 996°269°1 8188 LE 6¥Z VLS 6T ANNAATY LNAILIVALNO 6SO¥D TYIOL
900 °'798 ¥96 ‘€11 [ ¥96 €11 068°LE ¥96 €11 ° 96 €11 ANNEASY 4\O LSITVII4SOH
z88'6¥6°92¢ 9 9ZE'YI6 02 S00'@8Z¥ ' TEC CETEvE ‘T5E S9Z°LSL ST L] 00'6L5°Y 87188 L S8C'09V6Z INNIATE INEILVAINO XUVTIIONY
986669 °88 ’ TZ9'Y9T’E [4 108 1 284 ] €L6°5€9'98 0696596 [ (Lev 9T} 991°526'9 TEL 06’9 NNRAZY LNSILVANI SSO¥O TYiOL
99¥/150°2 8SL ‘08T ] 8SL°08T L1348 4 ¢4 85L 08T 0 9SL 08T BONFATY d\I LSITVLIJSOH
806 °'€95'9Y v £§00°695'T 226°1ZE " vy TE6'069°SY E€LE‘OST’S (344 6Ly vo¥) €ST'LL9’€ ¥Le'zez'e ANNIAFY INHILVANT AMVTIIONY
€19'v80°0% v vSRNIY'T OEY 69T 6€ 9T 995 0¥ 6ET°560°Y 9 £€82°L0C ST0‘8vr’s [ 134211 M BNN3ASY ENILNOY
SHNNAAY INBILIVd 5S0uD
se/0e/90 ENVINVA EORVINVA ¥2/0C/90 ZDNCTUAVA EONVINVA st/oe/90
W worud IoYRd o/ 804 T WOTYd 1NBOERE OEN/804 LEDAnY

ALITIOVE 34OOY

§T/08/90 GOINEL WOd
£20S6 W 'EXLIPITIOR

- IY1X4508 TVISCNEN SNIXAVE TRIVE

T 39¥4

VHAVYTIgS ‘3980
et @ §T/vL/e (9w

Page 40



¥89°'6L9°2Y oze 0ST'SLE ‘€T ZEE T89S Z8Y' LSS 6T S¥L 256" T 13 €25 '9€E v0Z'STS tzL' €56 (SSOT) SN14¥ns LEN
LyL'9€6’e 9 (L1 21 9TE LR E 006°TZT Y 589 °58L 0%6°691 €60 '6T¢ €€0°63Y (ISNEAXE) /SONIASY ONILVNHAO-NON TYIOL
0 0 [ ° 0 ° 0 0 0 o SNOTLNETYINGD NOTLIVHOEVTION
152°6 668’91 [ 66891 09% €T zoz'z (4 zoz'z FWOONT LNIWLSBANI
(9s5°¢09) v (1e9’6) (90 Cve) (L98'252) (L12'59) z (0%2) (€09°LT) (€9e°L1) BSNEdXS ¥HAO-NON YSHLO
782’90z 13] (1T8°'9) 968 ' 06T $60°901 [T{48 1] (TR 4] (zye'T) 806°ST 991'€1 ANNFASY ¥BL0-NON NEHLIO
(€59 'vz8) [} (s} (zLe’08¢L) (LL6°09¢) (tze’e9) [ [ (180°'s9) (190 °59) ASNIdXA\INNIATY INI QNOE 09
(1134 1344 T 05992 086°0TT°Z 0%9°6LT’T 611°09Z z39'92 ST6'SLT tes' 00z SEAXVL 40¥d QNOE 0D
982 °8ZY'T 0 626°C BYY'ESY’T LLE'TIV'T 68 '%0S T 626°T ¥56°v0T €80°'L0Z FNNBAZY XVY1 AL3FIONd
Z5L'06€ (444 oL 6T 000091 PRL¥SE STB'9YT (31384 (1244 %41 000°S 6918217 SNOLLWNOG
 HSHRSXE\ZNNIATY ONILVERAO-NON
st/oc/90 LORVIAVA EDMVINVA sT/0€/9%0 sT/06/90 sZ/0¢/9%0 LORVYIAVA IORVIAVA sT/0c/9%0 sT/0€/90
WX WOTHA Zumusd oW /904 ismoant ™OIOY WX wOTEL INTOARE oER/904 Zzpans
Cooooooo me e EINA~OL-WVER- - n~e-moeemcmeecncosncscassccs|  esmceecmeeaccocooaacascaee o cHINON LENEEAD - v o s m oo

§T/0€/%0 GOTWRA WOJ
€L0S6 W ‘YRISITIOR

ALITIOVE ELODV - TVIIJSOS TYINOKIN SHILNVE TXIVE

7 39vd

InvIIas
TELT @ SZ/vi/Lo

:xa80
193eg

Page 41



miuwessucnan

PEETYY

rmevsaassuma

azsssanamexs

Axmemmmmm—a xmxmrswane memezzewnaz= surezssnezEn -

{S507) S0N4¥NS LAN

287°900°€C ze Lt vet 0sz'set’t L2y 6951 (zzr'1e) (eST) (520 002} 00¥ LT (sz9°zL)
'S (] SLY 0zE ¥9¢ SEL"Y9E 1628 z Ly 0zL 1€ L66°1€ (35M24X3) /3NNBAEY ONILWEILO-NON TYIOL
{550°¢€8) ] z) {969 '69) (869 °69) (881’9} ] ° (8%0's} (evo’s) RERASXE YAJO-NON HEHLIO
[1434 £44 0 tew 9T0°vEN 33 M 142 660’68 T ey 97 '9¢ L1224 13 ANNIAY X¥L AL¥TIOUS
[ 0 0 0 0 ] ° o 0 ° SNOIIVNOG
: 36NBSXB\ANNEARY ONILVHZLO-NON
o01L'299'T Ly 0L €8¢ 0€6 028 ce9'voz'1 (EC0 ¥LT) (802) (z0S'007) 08Z 96 (zzz'vo0) (§507) BMOONI ONILVYE3O L8N
SLT'L80°TZ Z 9zZ '00% Zvo'esTTL 897 '€69°2T 608°9€1°L 6 99L°€9T [ 252 18 4 BET'9Z0 'L SESNESXE TVLIOL
zAC'959 € 28691 69%'599 ary’ze9 (L9 [{24] (€1e'zy) vEL'¥S h¢4 281 ANHLO
0 [ 4 ] [} o [} o ° [ LSBUSLNI
SLs'zLw o (8ss'v) ORINLY 98063 | 24314 0 es) LES'6€ 13 N34 NOIIVIOEY4Eq
9LE T [41:] S€8PIT 188°21 9TL 12T 0S°‘T T2 Te€°2Z 650°Y Y ET TYLNAY
9INPT ESO°T £t 80 'BET 8Lz 150’1 9ZT'06T"T zr9 ‘vt 114 0BT LY Loy’98 L85°€EY SIDTAYRE QASVHOUND
STE'STL'T v 06€' 0¥ 651'SST°1 69575671 7'ty 9 §08°S 596 6S€°Z0T S¥1144NS
0z5°'9L (s) (zzs'1) %002 0Z5'9L otz't (2] (v§) yog'z otz’'T SE34 TYNOISES40ud
0LT'99S'S (9 (099'LLE) 9€0°69Z'9 9LL 166 'S 695 °LEY 9 9151t $99'92S 191855 S1149NE8 $IXOTARNE
ors‘8Lr (1] EET PLE 2€1'T5€ S9I¥'§99 689°LE zet s'eTs [ 28 1 [1:19a 4] AWLSTOMY
TS5 EvL T z L' est (23081 84 ¢ 18T ¥¥Y 2T BES'SLE'T z e 9t Lz€'920°T 09T Ev0 T SEOYM 3 FHIYVIVS
:SESKASXE ONILVHALO
£66°6¥L (T 1] 926 €99 zZL6'EX0 ‘€L 006 168 €2 9LL’'T96'1 z) (9¢L’ 9¢) "WLES6'T 900°'ZZ6°T SNNSASY ONILV¥EJO dNS JEN
[ ° 0 [ [ 0 0 ° ° 0 SNNBASS DRILVHIE0 WHALO
€66°69L €T 1 626 €09 ZL6'ET0 €2 006 'L68°€Z 9LL’'296°'T iz) (8L '9%) v.°856°T 900°ZZ6 ‘T SNNAASY LNIIIVd dNS 1aN
LIL'99S'Y (24 180°8LS S69°99%'Y 9LL'¥Y0'S SO¥’LST $9 z09°'S¥Z 9€0°08¢C 0¥9 529 HANSASY WONA SNOLLONAEG 4NS TYLOL
z€6°9L€ 8E 8099y 6€6 'SBE LYS'0€S 08’8 9LE 955 '€2Y (11 244 oY 95T SINEWLSALAY QNY STVALOVULINOGD HAHLO
zoL'e [14 3¢ ] 0 [ 14 204 0 [} [ o [ TAV2 ALIAVIO
(960°@6) ' zee’s 000 09 zeT ‘89 (8Zz’9) {Log) [£3 12814 000'S {s9¢°0T) HSNE4XE 1430 Jvd
Z66°TYI‘T (87) (LEL'795) 66E'289 T £99'616 (€6 °95) {v) {9€5’S) (2288 244 L9021 STONYMOTTY TVALIVLLROD TVO-1d8W
LB TI¥9 'L Lt 6€5°9Z6 LSE’'9ES°T 968 Yo% 'L (A1 48214 99 9¥6 " TYL 0£0°9TZ 916 °8SE SEONYMOTTY TVNLOVILNGD ¥VOIGEW
‘dNS ANNBAHY WO¥d SNOILONGAA
0TL'91E'82 H 600°29%'T L9908 LZ 9L9'Zv6°82 A C) 80074 884 6 998 ' 90Z ELREC T 999 LYS'T FNNTAAR INSILVE NS 550D TViOL
1L '909°¢€ 144 9€9'L98 881°268°¢C 978 '6SL'Y 150'6c2 [14 €Ce 9zt €SZ TEL 90565 SNNEANY 4NS AYVITIONY
966°'L0L V2 € TLE'VES 6LY'885 €2 05028192 OET T8 T » 1€£5°08 6IS'L00’Z 090°'880 2 SANEASH NS EINILNOY
TEONIANY LNNILYS 4NS S50U9
ve/oe/90 TIRYTUVA ONVYINNA sT/08/9 sT/0c/90 Z/0C/90 TORVIAVA KOMVTUVA sz/0¢/%0 §T/0E/90
€K ¥orwd IREOUNL OEN/804 IE0ang TeAIOY wx worwd P7. ~ . oM/ 904 lapane TIIOY
| RS L L L L R R R ittt - - RING-OL-WWEK -~ -=====--cmmecmoecomcammana-u] [ e e 17 1 . S

€T/0€/90 QOTWEE WOL
¥ “¥RISITION
$EILITIONS OMISUOA QETIIES SMINNVE TMIVE

1 30¥d

VANVIIQsS
OELT ® SZT/%U/L0

EEETTY
i93eq

Page 42



Date: 07/14/25 @ 1730

PAGE 1
User: SDILAURA

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
HOLLISTER, CA
Por the month ended 06/30/25

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH POS/NEG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR

06/30/25 05/31/25 VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/24
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH & CASH EQUTVALENT 46,674,801 46,074,130 600,671 1 35,145,624
PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 66,556,230 66,592,582 {36,292) 0 67,848,785
BAD DEBT ALLOWANCE (7.062,672) (6,686,582) (376,090) 6 (9,487,617)
CONTRACTUAL RESERVES (38,404,377} (38,570,490) 166,113 0 {46,279,766)
OTHRER RECEIVABLES 5,032,841 3,708,159 1,324,682 36 5,931,344
INVENTORIES 4,556,855 4,456,102 100,673 2 4,496,070
PREPAID EXPENSES 2,599,564 2,103,502 496,082 24 1,775,026
DUE TO\PROM THIRD PARTIES (181, 860) (181,860) 0 Q 200,709
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 79,771,462 77,495,624 2,275,838 3 $9,630,175

=szwme=z=s=== x====az=s=aa= S==rrzazExuz

ASSETS WHOSE USE IS LIMITED

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS 5,234,141 8,013,013 {2,778,872) {35} 3,512,919

3,512,919

TOTAL LIMITED USE ASSETS 5,234,141 8,013,013 (2,778,872) (35)

===

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

LAND & LAND IMPROVEMENTS 3,370,474 3,370,474 0 Q 3,370,474
BLDGS & BLDG IMPROVEMENTS 100,098,374 100,098,374 0 a 100,098,374
EQUIPMENT 46,216,440 45,876,270 340,170 1 44,435,024
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 4,324,809 4,199,667 125,141 3 1,393,964
GROSS PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 154,010,097 153,544,784 465,313 4] 149,297,836
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (98,388, 979) (98,058, 044) {330, 934) ] (94,409,166}
NET PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 55,621,119 55,486,741 134,379 0 54,888,670
Easmazenenee mesasssamwen mzsssszanmna asemxwazan ssswmEszanaz
OTHER ASSETS
UNAMORTIZED LOAN COSTS 327,215 333,126 (5,911} {2) 398,148
PENSION DEFERRED OUTFLOWS NET 7,038,149 7.038,149 Q g 7,038,143
TOTAL OTHBR ASSETS 7,365,364 7,371,275 (5,911) ¢ 7,436,297
camcamasannn emezcesemasa Amsesmmanans memmameme wessnewmmmaxn
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED ASSETS 147,992,086 148,366,653 (374,566) 0 125,468,061
azzassmxaaxns zams=zaauszac mazasmazanse ssezzazzaz sssamzasaz:s
RESTRICTED ASSETS 127,208 127,157 S1 Q 127,119
TOTAL ASSETS 148,119,235 148,493,810 (374,515) 0 125,595,180

Page 43




Date: 07/14/25 @ 1730
User: SDILAURR

PAGE 2

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

HOLLISTER, CA
Por the month ended 06/30/35

CURR MONTH PRIOR MONTH PO8/NEBG PERCENTAGE PRIOR YR
06/30/25 05/31/35% VARIANCE VARIANCE 06/30/24
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 6,196,661 5,571,589 (625,072) 11 8,572,685
ACCRUED PAYROLL 3,467,229 2,920,381 (546,849) 13 5,824,977
ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES 510,049 456,178 (53,871) 12 1,608,471
ACCRUED BENEFITS 5,074,320 5.206, 840 132,520 (1) 6,695,829
OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES 85,565 76,823 (6,742) 9 89,5859
PATIBENT REFUNDS PAYABLE 1,310 1,310 0 0 12,920
DUE TO\FROM THIRD PARTIES 4,701,466 5.356,466 655,000 (12) 2,355,584
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 756,834 1,046,382 290,147 (28} 611,755
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 20,793,435 20,638,568 (154,867) 1 25,771,780
Ermarmswmamz mmmszemzcsca zr2zessanaus smemamm=as mesezemmuEEs
LONG-TERM DEBT
LEASES PAYABLE 4,635,29¢ 4,642,201 6,905 0 5,107,486
BONDS PAYABLE 28,534,881 29,893,401 1,358,520 (5! 31,742,121
TOTAL LONG TERM DEBT 33,170,177 34,535,602 1,365,425 {4) 36,849,607
Asessazmcans zammzzssssaz ammmsmazEzaw mmmmw=z=za szxzecaassss
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
DEFERRED REVENUE [ 0 4 0 0
LONG-TERM PENSION LIABILITY 23,814,514 23,814,514 0 0 23,814,514
TOTAL OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 23,814,514 23,814,514 Q 0 23,814,514
===azca==axa wmmzmmszmsEsa s=racszanusa ammecwanmen cmwamammsses
TOTAL LIABILITIES 77,778,126 78,988,684 1,210,558 (2) 86,435,901
NET ASSETS:
UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 39,064,686 39,064,686 (] [ 39,064,686
RESTRICTED PUND BALANCE 149,573 184,631 45,058 (23 94,593
NET REVENUE/ (EXPENSES) 31,126,910 30,245,809 (881,101} 3 9
TOTAL NET ASSETS 70,341,169 69,505,126 {836,043) 1 39,159,279
semamazzaxsn sesrzasyeszs szzazzazzaxs mamzacs=ss 2aszcamsanas
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 148,113,295 148,493,810 374,515 0 125,595,180
mzzaamsamane ccmEmzmooen= ss=ese=x Amammeamen

EET RS P

Page 44




e

San Benito Health Care District
Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital

JUNE 2025
Descrigtion MTD Budget MTD Actusi YTD Actual YIDBudget | FYEBudget
Average Daily Census - Acute 1495 — nun 14.90 14.90
Aversge Oally Census - ShE S o ma= s IR 50
Acute Length of Stay 29 _ 250 290
ER Visits:
Inpatient 114 1,644 1,444
Outpatient 2,035 25,269 25,269
Total 2,149 26,713 26,713
Days in Accounts Recaivable 50.0 s11 511 50.0 00
Productive Full-Time Equivalants 521.33 523.75 H s21.33 52133
Net Patient Revenue 12,155,548 11,469,376 M 144,649,605 | 144,649,605
Payment-to-Charge Ratio % 29.4% M 32.7% 32.7%
Medicare Traditional Payor Mix 31.93% 30.61% M 28.51% 851%
Commercial Payor Mix 20.82% * 21.88% 21.88%
Bad Debt % of Gross Revenue 1.42% w 1.42% 142%
€BI0A 972,898 9,672,030 9,672,030
EBIDA % 7.66% 6.40% 6.40%
Operating Margin 3.09% 2.80% d 1.72% 1.72%
Salaries, Wages, Registry & Benefits %:
by Net Operating Revenue 60.60% 61.10% 61.10%
by Total Operating Expense 62.53% 62.15% 6215%
Bond Covenants:
Debt Service Ratlo 1.25 128 s.18
Current Ratio 150 1.50 2.00
30.00 30.00 100.00
Mpt Exceeded Taraot
in 10% of Ta
Nat Within 107

Page 45



adusLeA zea'/8c'os

pueH uo yse) paradipng 6806'98Z'0¥$

€0t

ziges

puel uo yse) sAsQ [euonesedp

Usiq 3Y) uru o) Aep sad 180D

0% 108929978 1osvivore
o VR P T E——
“yeosyise 0EL'YL0OF
LL'8ZS'L +29°009
168°YS 804 Gvi
locy'aLo'c! (STY'5eC"L)
0 0
Spuog TZOT UM sPUoR £T02 )0 Supueugay 1 jedpuisg 09 ¥10T
(rg5'TeC9I 0L¥'61E'Z
uonEzIIOWY Ze6'0L 118°S
1PUOR 1202 ¥ (SOOZ) ¥10Z - WswAed 1UI T 1WOPUIG PUOY 2.8'8LL'C
0 0
(ora'ors's) {esg'snt's)
SPUOE INUIAIY T70Z '§ OD S00T - "I [ENUUY-{WIaS LBO'GkL IrL 082
ZBR'SKE'Z
8 0
Lo
00Z'88r
o 4]
PLO'9LE zL0's29
895°28¢€ 0
€05'888
692'8VZ
rig'eL6'c ¥£6'08€
0168'9Z1L°1es [GHINE: -1
$Z02/0C19 $T02/0€/9
1RQ-0]-IW0A puow
waund weuny
SINIWWOD MOT4 HSVYD

poyed jo pu3 ‘ysed
poued Jo Buunbag ‘ysed
yse) uj (sseaudeq)Pseasdul 19N
S13SSV QILONMLSIY NI ISYIHIIAAISYIHONI)

soniARaY Bupduruld Joj POs) ysed 9N
SanIIGeI UL Bu0T JARO U (98RI8Q)RsRROU
198q @0eBuopy puog ui (sseeag)esesou
1q9Q 9583 [epde) ul (Iseansq)eseamu]
'SILIAILOY ONIONVYNIZ WOHS SMO14 HSVD

sa0iARoY BuRsaau) Ag pesn ysed 1N
SI9S8Y SO UI 8588000/ (asBaIU)
SIOSSY IS POYWI QO Ul @sRaOeQ/(FsEAOU))
SIUSUSBAU] PUB YFED BS() POYWT UI @sERIeAAISERIOU])
alwdinb3 pue jued ‘Auadold Jo 3seyUNG
SALLALLIY ONILSIANI W03 SMO14 HSVD

‘semAnoy BupriedQ Aq pepircid ysed 19N

SOMIgel JUBLND RO U) (9888208())/0SERDU|
SOL|IGEI/SO0UBAPY Aled PIIY L Ul (9SBRUDRQ)/esERIU|
sjquAed spunyay Jusned Ul (9586.09Q)R8eIU
dx3 pansooy Ul (¢ )] J|
siyeueg pue |j0)heg panuddy | (aseaneq)eseany|
oiqeAd SUBOT PUE SIION U) (9S8ESUI9(1)eseR0U|
sjqedBd SJUNCIOV L) (9SERI0I()/eSERNU|

senIRd PAY L Wou4 ONQ U] dseaA/(aseal])

sasuadxg pred-aid L) aseasaQ/(esealdu))

SAUOJUAY] L) OSBRI (0sTRIOUY)

$OIQEAIIIY PYIO W 9588090 98eRU)
SqRAIBIIY SHUNOOY Juaned JaN Ul aseasoaq/(eseasdu))
uogepadeq
‘sopALdY Sunesado Ag pepinoid
YSED 18N O) BIOOU] 13N B|12UCIRY 0) FUBUASNIPY
(5807} swodu| 19N
‘SILNLOV ONLLVEIHO WOHI SMOTd HSYD

§20zZ ‘o¢ aune Bujpue syluow eajemy
VO 48ISiIIoH
13]dSOH [BHOWSlY SuljMeH jezeH

SMOL4 Yse) JO Juswaelg

Page 46



8y v9S'LT LIT'T8Y'YT sjuawAeq jRIuawAddng 19N N~
(HEP'SL ( £ pied <t
T Huipuag |E0) 1))
prE0L6'S E0C'2LS LT paAIaIay je1op w
a
£98'906'61 LIT°28Y'YT sjejo] pueso wesBosd
€06'vL8'6 L6L'8SY8 1€303-qns | 9§-UoN
'SZOT ‘OE aunf y8noays Ayauenb padadxy  LL8'TSP'T 1ST'092°T SH {HsQ) aseys Aeuvopsodoidsiq [e)-1PAN -
*32UJIP 1503 [ENIIE U0 paseq - - (4N/dQ) AWjiaed BulsinN ‘Lieg 1UNISIQ -
‘QLA sluawAed 13D pIg 1 ‘PuT “IST P,OAY €98'b¥Z'E SOHO MA (3VOH) pung adueunssy A)enD jendsoH 6€Z 8S -
'§20Z ‘0€ dunf u) Wawded nb Yy 19y 179'180'1 A {(3VOH) pung asuesnssy Ayjjen jelidsoy 6€Z 85 -
"20T/LT/90 '8 ¥TOZ/ET/S0 'YTOZ/6T/E0 U0 231 SV PIE 'R PUZ IST  TEL'BOLE - {4YOH) puny asuesnssy AyjenD [eydsoH 6€Z 8S -
‘YZOZ ‘v 'das 3By L1 £15°690'T {4vDH} pung 3dueinssy AnienDd [endsoH 67 9S -
"STOT ‘LT YIJe UO PIARIY  LTL'EPT'Y $85'208°T YT-ETOTAS ST 8V -
‘SudARg 139410 1SWRIS0Id JPYSURI) JEruutnsaa0Ralul-una
096'T€0°0T 0ZE'ET0'9 fe303-qns 191
"$T0Z ‘6 $3qW3Q Lo pied (980 '06¢ udwAeday ueo S Ad dID -
'$207/80/v0 uo pied JuawAeday ueo puZ ¢ Ad diD -
‘$ZOT/9T/TO VO preg  [000'ESET) wawAeday ueo  IST ¥ Ad dID -
"ARI Ug 03y "4THQ 341 AQ pateasd wesBoid maN - £S8'0TL 5IHO £202 AD (dGHQ) siudwhed paidalig Jeitdsoy 11sIq -
‘ABWN UL "33y "YDIBI Uj GLE'TVETS JO LDI WIS GLETVE'T 09Z'TIE'Y SOHG WAWANIS 9 Ad dID -
“Aep/idy L) pa1dadxa spumy ‘9 0SE'TE8'TS JO YZOT ‘9T ‘A AQ LOI  LSL'E6SYE wiayuy WAWBURS § Ad dID -
"STOT Aseniqad ut panladldy IYT'6EE'T €207 'T€ 930 YINosY) ZZOT ‘T 'ver aduey ey -
"Aepy /1y Ul palaadxa spuny ‘'80S'TLYS 40 YTOT ‘€T ‘424 AQ 191 6LT'ST0'T ZZOZ "TE€ '33Q YBnouyy Zzoz ‘1 "uer aBuey ajey -
"Aewy uy 29y “(udy Ul €6T°£90'TS JO 191 Pied 950°20v'T v207 AD (4VDH) pung aduesnssy ABENY) [eudSOH 6EZ 85 -
‘3unf/Aey ul pardadxa spuny ‘SELLST'TS 40 ¥ZOT ‘TT YIIEN AQ LI 8LTTEY'T r €207 AD (3VDH) punj asuenssy AljenD 1endsoH 6€Z 8S -
"TTOT AD 10§ X234 £TOT ‘T JAQUISAON UO P,53) JUNOWE N BHS'SOY'T - 2202 A {3VOH) pung asueinssy Ajenp (e)dsoH 6EZ 8S -
"STOT 3unruy JdY "aunf ut p,dal Spuny ‘TS€88'90S$ ‘v2/vT/rO Vo pled  ZLYVEY TOE'SOE SLUTIRTOT 445 WUV YTOT/ETOT AdS
"§Z0Z 2UN[ UL *23Y "dUNT Ut P,IAL SPUNY “€9°SZS'9STS ‘FT/LT/POUOPled  SBLLOV S6L°6E SIHC 07 A45 Judwdhed [eul £70Z/270T AJS
(HdQN) |endson Mqnd paieudisag-uoN €XT 8V -
wIn3da Supynew 1op Jem pue wesSosd puny 03 PLISIG SJNbIY :swesBoid sysuel] [eudwuidnodiau
'SIION $20Z A3 STOT AJ 10Aed
lenmoy jenpy

ST0Z ‘0t aunf IA4
sweifoid JuawAey jeyuawaddng
{eUdSOH [RLIOWIN SUyMeH |3ZeH



July 24, 2025

The Honorable J. Omar Rodriguez, Presiding Judge
Judge of the Superior Court

c/o Office of the County Counsel

450 Fourth Street

Hollister, CA 95023

Re: 2024-2025 San Benito County Grand Jury Final Report — San Benito Health Care District

Dear Honorable Judge Rodriguez,

This letter is in response to the San Benito County Civil Grand Jury Final Report regarding the
San Benito Health Care District (“SBHD” or “District”) pursuant to Penal Code sections 933 and
933.05. The District Board approved the responses contained in this correspondence at its
regular meeting on July 24, 2025.

The District is committed to complying with applicable law. The District appreciates the Civil
Grand Jury’s work and responds to the report’s findings and recommendations below. The
actual report language is displayed in bold type for readability.

FINDINGS

F1. Three members of the 2024 Board of Directors for the SBHD were not administered the
Oath of Office by a person who is authorized to do so. The error was remediated in
December 2024, after it was brought to the attention of the Board of Directors.

The District Board disagrees with this finding.

Government Code section 1360 requires all elected or appointed officers to take and subscribe
the oath or affirmation set forth in Article XX of the California Constitution. Section 1362
provides that “[u]nless otherwise provided, the oath may be taken before any officer authorized
to administer oaths. . . Section 1001 defines “civil executive officers” to include “. . . such
other officers as fill offices created by or under the authority of charters or laws for the
government of counties and cities or of the health, school, election, road, or revenue laws; or
persons serving on boards and commissions created under the laws of the state or established
under the State Constitution.”

The District is a health care district governed by Health Care District Law, set forth at Health and
Safety Code section 32000 et seq. Health Care District Law section 32002 specifically provides
that health care district elections must be conducted in accordance with the Uniform District
Election Law (“UDEL”), which is found at Election Code section 10500 et seq. (Health and
Safety Code section 32002.) The District Bylaws similarly provide that District elections are
subject to UDEL (Bylaws, Section VII.A.3.)

4920-4484-3859, v. 1

Page 48



Election Code section 10512(b), which is part of the UDEL, governs the administration of the
oath for those members elected to the District Board and provides:

“The county elections official or district secretary, or a person designated by the
county elections official or district secretary, may administer the oath or
affirmation set forth in Section 3 of Article XX of the California Constitution to
the candidate elected to office.”

Neither Health Care District Law nor any provision of the Government Code requires a County
Official listed in Government Code section 24000 to administer the Oath of Office to a District
Board member, although they are authorized to do so.

Rather, the District Secretary, or a person designated by District Secretary, has authority to
administer the oath or affirmation to newly elected Board members. In an abundance of caution,

the District had the Oaths of Office re-administered by a County official between December 13-
19, 2024.

RECOMMENDATIONS

R1. The SBHD must ensure that only those persons duly authorized to administer the oath
of office for elected officials in all government areas or departments, as detailed in
Government Code 24000, should be performing this function. It is imperative for the
integrity of the electoral process and the validity of the official actions taken by board
members that these authorized individuals properly administer the oath of office.

The District agrees it is imperative for the integrity of the electoral process that the Board
members are sworn into office in accordance with Health Care District Law and UDEL. The

District Secretary or designee may administer the Qath of Office. The recommendation has been
implemented.

The District appreciates the opportunity to respond to the San Benito County Civil Grand Jury’s
Report.

Respectfully,

William Johnson
President of the Board of Directors

4920-4484-3859, v. 1

Page 49



Resolution No. 2025-04

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT REGARDING
ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS OF OFFICE

WHEREAS, the San Benito Health Care District (“District”) is a local health care
district duly organized and operating under the terms of the Local Health Care District Law

(California Health and Safety Code Division 23, sections 32000-32492 (“Local Health Care
District Law™);

WHEREAS, in addition to Local Health Care District Law, the District is governed by
Uniform District Election Law, set forth at California Elections Code section 10500 et seq.;

WHEREAS, the District Bylaws provide that procedures of the election shall be

governed by the Local Health Care District Law and the Uniform District Election Law (Bylaws,
VILA.3);

WHEREAS, Uniform District Election Law, set forth at California Elections Code
section 10500 et seq., requires that elective officers, elected or appointed, “take office at noon on
the first Friday in December next following the general district election,” and that prior to taking
office, each elective officer “shall take the official oath” (section 10554);

WHEREAS, Government Code section 1360 requires all elected or appointed officers to
“take and subscribe the oath or affirmation set forth in Article XX of the California
Constitution”;

WHEREAS, Government Code section 1362 provides that the “oath may be taken
before any officer authorized to administer oaths”;

WHEREAS, Government Code section 1225 states that an “executive officer, a judicial
officer, and a Member of the legislature may administer and certify oaths”;

WHEREAS, Government Code section 1001 provides that “civil executive officers”
include “such other officers as fill offices created by or under the authority of charters or laws for
the government of counties and cities or of the health, school, election, road, or revenue laws; or

persons serving on boards and commissions created under the laws of the state or established
under the State Constitution”;

WHEREAS, Elections Code section 10512(b) provides that “[t]he county elections
official or district secretary, or a person designated by the county elections official or district
secretary, may administer the oath or affirmation set forth in Section 3 of Article XX of the
California Constitution to the candidate elected to office”;

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors is committed to ensuring proper procedures

for the administration of the oath of office for elected and appointed officials as required under
applicable laws;

4929-0469-3333, v. 2 Page 50



WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors, including the District Secretary, desire to
designate individuals authorized to administer oaths to elected and appointed officials of the
District; and

WHEREAS, this Resolution is not defined as a project under the California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA?), set forth at Public Resources Code section 21065, or
section 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines, because administration of the Oaths of Office will
not cause either a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect
physical change in the environment.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the San
Benito Health Care District Board of Directors as follows:

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are true, correct, and a substantive part of this
Resolution.

SECTION 2. Any elective officer of the San Benito Health Care District Board of
Directors, the United States of America, the State of California, and any city, district, or county
located within the State of California, is hereby authorized to administer the Oath of Office to
any individual required to take and subscribe to such an Oath under applicable law, including,
but not limited to, elected or appointed officials of the San Benito Health Care District. For
purposes of this Resolution, “elective officers” means any officer of a local, state, or federal
agency, or political subdivision, holding an office that can be filled by election pursuant to state
or federal law.

SECTION 3. This authority shall be exercised in accordance with applicable laws and
procedures, and in furtherance of the official duties of the elected official administering the oath.

SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of July, 2025 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:

ABSENT:

William Johnson, President

Attested:
Nick Gabriel, Secretary

2 Page 51



San Benito Health Care District
Facilities and Finance Committee Minutes
July 21, 2025 - 4:36pm

Present: Bill Johnson, Board President

Public:

Victoria Angelo, Board Treasurer

Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer

Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer

Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services
Suzie Mays, Vice President, Information & Strategic Services

Karen Descent, Chief Nursing Officer

Douglas Mays, Senior Director of Support Services

Sandra Dilaura, Controller

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the Facilities and Finance Committee was called to order at 4:30pm.

2. APPROVE MINUTES OF THE FACILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING, MAY 15, 2025

3. CURRENT PROJECTS

A. HHH Helipad Repair

Received approval from HCAI to use Helipad on a temporary basis, as long as extra extinguishers
are added and security is called to monitor. Start date of the Permanent repair is still unknown
but once contract is, signed installation could take 6-8 weeks to complete.

4. REVIEW FINANCIAL UPDATES

A. June 2025 Financial Statements

For the month ending June 30, 2025, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $881,101
compared to a budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $742,604. The District exceeded its budget for
the month by $138,497.

YTD as of June 30, 20235, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $31,126,910 compared to a
budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $6,867,582. The District is exceeding its budget YTD by
$24,259,328.

Acute discharges were 161 for the month, exceeding budget by 6 discharges or 4%. The
ADC was 15.10 compared to a budget of 14.95. The ALOS was 2.81. The acute I/P
gross revenue was slightly less than budgeted by ($16,437) (0%) while O/P services
gross revenue exceeded budget by $1.69 million or 6% over budget. ER I/P visits were
127 and ER O/P visits were over budget by 64 visits or 3%. The RHCs & Specialty
Clinics treated 3,202 (includes 521 visits at the Diabetes Clinic) and 1,116 visits
respectively.



Other Operating revenue exceeded budget by $1.58 million due to:

1) $1,162,892 for CY 2024 IGT and (Direct) HQAF funding.
2) $112,289 for CCAH — HQIP and $112,547 higher Magellan Rx rebate.

Operating Expenses were over budget by $743,827 due mainly to: Registry of $306,782
(partially offset by savings in Salary & Wages of $130,195. Benefits and Supplies were
over budget by $189,923 and $150,935 respectively due mainly to an increase in
Employee Health insurance claims and Orthopedic surgery cases.

Non-operating Revenue exceeded budget by $122,348 which included donations from
the Auxiliary and Foundation of $45,000 and $83,000 respectively.

The SNFs ADC was 92.60 for the month. The Net Surplus (Loss) is ($72,625) compared
to a budget of $127,400. YTD, the Net Surplus (Loss) is $1,569,427 exceeding its budget
by $384,177.

B. June 2025 Finance Dashboard
The Finance Dashboard and Cash Flow Statement were reviewed by the Committee.

C. Supplemental Pavment Program
All expected supplementals have been received as of June 2025.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT
An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to
address the Board Members and Administration.

6. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business, the Committee was adjourned at 4:39 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Sandra DilLaura
Controller



July 17, 2025
San Benito Healthcare District
Board of Directors

Via Electronic Delivery — Corrected

Re: The 2024-25 San Benito County Civil Grand Jury Consolidated Report
Dear Members of the Board of Directors,

Enclosed please find a copy of the above report by the 2024-25 San Benito County Grand Jury.

Attached are excerpts from Penal Code sections 933 and 933.05. Please note that subdivision
(f) of Penal Code section 933.05 specifically prohibits any disclosure of the contents of a grand
jury report by a public agency or its officers or governing body before its release to the public,
which will occur two days after the date of this letter.

Penal Code §933.05 requires that you respond separately to the specified Findings and
Recommendations contained in the report. Penal Code § 933.05 mandates the content and
format of responses. Penal Code section 933 mandates the deadline for responses.

The Board of Directors of the Healthcare District is required to respond within 90 days as
follows:

Hard copy to: The Honorable J. Omar Rodriguez, Presiding Judge, 450 Fourth Street, Hollister,
CA 95023.

Responses are public records. Your entity must maintain a copy of your response.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at (831) 313-3147 or email me at:
BarbaraSBCGJ@gmail.com.

Sincerely,

Barbara Douglass-Scherer
Foreperson, 2024-25 San Benito County Civil Grand Jury

Enclosures: Grand jury report and Penal Code sections 933 and 933.05 (excerpts)



§ 933. Findings and Recommendations (Excerpt)

No later than 90 days after the grand jury submits a final report on the operations of any public agency
subject to its reviewing authority, the governing body of the public agency shall comment to the presiding
Judge of the superior court on the findings and recommendations pertaining to matters under the control
of the governing body, and every elected county officer or agency head for which the grand jury has
responsibility pursuant to Section 914.1 shall comment within 60 days to the presiding judge of the
superior court, with an information copy sent to the board of supervisors, on the findings and
recommendations pertaining to matters under the control of that county officer or agency head and any
agency or agencies which that officer or agency head supervises or controls. In any city and county, the
mayor shall also comment on the findings and recommendations. All of these comments and reports shall
forthwith be submitted to the presiding judge of the superior court who impaneled the grand jury. A copy
of all responses to grand jury reports shall be placed on file with the clerk of the public agency and the
office of the county clerk, or the mayor when applicable, and shall remain on file in those offices...

As used in this section, “agency” includes a department.

§ 933.0S. Responses to Findings (Excerpt)

(a) For purposes of subdivision (b) of Section 933, as to each grand jury finding, the responding person
or entity shall indicate one of the following:
(1) The respondent agrees with the finding.
(2) The respondent disagrees wholly or partially with the finding, in which case the response shall
specify the portion of the finding that is disputed and shall include an explanation of the reasons
therefor.

(b) For purposes of subdivision (b) of Section 933, as to each grand jury recommendation, the
responding person or entity shall report one of the following actions:

(1) The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the implemented action.

(2) The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in the future, with a
timeframe for implementation.

(3) The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the scope and parameters
of an analysis or study, and a timeframe for the matter to be prepared for discussion by the officer
or head of the agency or department being investigated or reviewed, including the governing
body of the public agency when applicable. This timeframe shall not exceed six months from the
date of publication of the grand jury report.

(4) The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or is not reasonable,
with an explanation therefore.

(c) However, if a finding or recommendation of the grand jury addresses budgetary or personnel matters
of a county agency or department headed by an elected officer, both the agency or department head
and the board of supervisors shall respond if requested by the grand jury, but the response of the
board of supervisors shall address only those budgetary or personnel matters over which it has some
decision making authority. The response of the elected agency or department head shall address all
aspects of the findings or recommendations affecting his or her agency or department.

(f) A grand jury shall provide to the affected agency a copy of the portion of the grand jury report
relating to that person or entity two working days prior to its public release and after the approval of
the presiding judge. No officer, agency, department, or governing body of a public agency shall
disclose any contents of the report prior to the public release of the final report. (Emphasis added.)




38

SAN BENITO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
COMPLAINT BACKGROUND

INTRODUCTION

The 2024-2025 Civil Grand Jury (CGJ) received a complaint regarding the swearing-in process
of the recently elected Board of Directors for the San Benito Healthcare District (SBHD).

METHODOLOGY

The CGJ conducted multiple interviews, including, but not limited to, witnesses, County staff,
and other persons deemed knowledgeable of the incidents. Reviewed were the current and
past 2024-2025 swearing-in document confirmation.

BACKGROUND

According to Title 1, Division 4, Chapter 1, Article 8, Code 1225 - Who is authorized to
administer oaths lists the officers who can officially administer and certify oaths. Title 3, Division
2, Part 1, Chapter 1, Code 24000, lists the county officers who are allowed to administer oaths.
For complete information regarding these Government Codes, log onto
https://leginfo.leqislature.ca.aov for detailed information.

DISCUSSION

In November 2024, three seats for the Board of Directors at the SBHD were up for election.
Each newly elected seat was sworn in separately in December 2024.

Based on our investigation, it was determined that the three newly elected Board of Directors
who were elected to the SBHD were NOT sworn in according to the government codes listed
above. It was also determined that this error was subsequently remedied (corrected).

Oath Not Administered

Date Error Remediated by

Number of Unauthorized

Correctly Date San Benito County Officials Days
12/5/2024 12/19/2024 14
12/5/2024 12/13/2024 8
12/4/2024 12/13/2024 9

In reviewing documents obtained by the CGJ regarding the Oath of Office being administered to
the Board of Directors of the SBHD, it was determined that elected officials before December 4,
2024, were not sworn in by persons authorized to do so. The CGJ did not decide as to whether
or not meeting and voting rights may have been violated during the period between being
incorrectly sworn in and the remedial action to correct the status of the Board member.

®

2024-2025 San Benito County Civil Grand Jury Consolidated Report



39

The review of previous years' procedures has brought to light a significant issue concerning the
administration of the Oath of Office to the Board Members of the SBHD. It has been observed
that before December 4, 2024, individuals who were not authorized to administer the oath were
performing this vital function. The unauthorized administration of the Oath of Office has several
potential implications: (1) Validity of Board Members' Positions: The legitimacy of the Board
Members' positions may be questioned, as the oath was not administered by authorized
individuals. This could potentially invalidate their roles and responsibilities. (2) Meeting and
Voting Rights: If the Board Members were not validly inducted, any decisions made during
meetings and any votes cast may be subject to legal scrutiny and potential invalidation. This can
severely affect the governance and operational decisions of the Healthcare District.

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

F1: Three members of the 2024 Board of Directors for the SBHD were not administered the
Oath of Office by a person who is authorized to do so. The error was remediated in December
2024, after it was brought to the attention of the Board of Directors.

R1: The SBHD must ensure that only those persons duly authorized to administer the oath of
office for elected officials in all government areas or departments, as detailed in Government
Code 24000, should be performing this function. It is imperative for the integrity of the electoral
process and the validity of the official actions taken by board members that these authorized
individuals properly administer the oath of office.

REQUIRED RESPONSES

San Benito Healthcare District Board of Directors

Disclaimer: This report was issued by the Civil Grand Jury, except for Stacie McGrady, due to
a perceived bias towards the San Benito Healthcare District. This Civil Grand Juror did not
participate in any aspect of the investigation, including interviews and deliberations, the
preparation and writing of this report, or the approval of the report.

2024-2025 San Benito County Civil Grand Jury Consolidated Report



